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AN OVERVIEW ON MISSING CHILDREN

THURSDAY, MAY 23, 1985

U.S. SENATE,
SuBcoMMITTEE oN CHILDREN, FAMILY,
DRUGS AND ALCOHOLISM,
CoMMITTEE ON LABoR AND HUMAN RESOURCES,
Washington, DC.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:08 a.m., in room
SD-430, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Paula Hawkins
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.
Present: Senators Hawkins, Nickles, Grassley, Dodd, Metz-
enbaum, and Thurmond.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR HAWKINS

Senator HAwKINs. Good morning.

It has been almost 4 years since I first introduced the Missing
Children Act in the Senate and 3V years since we held our first
congressional hearing on the plight of missing children. Tremen-
dous progress has been made in the intervening years that has im-
proved our response to the plight of missing children, however,
much, much more remains to be done.

On October 6, 1981, I introduced the panel of parents by stating
that “These are voices that must be heard—brave, brave parents
whose lives have been devastated by an ordeal of despair. These
parents are driven in their unbearable search for the truth by the
strongest force in our society—love of 4 parent for a child.”

I have learned that there is no need, no passion, no tenacity
greater than that of a parent who is searching for his <hild.

Because of the dedication of these parents and their unwavering
efforts to help other parents of missing children avoid the trauma
these parents have suffered, we have made tremendous progress in
our Nation’s response to missing children.

We passed the Missing Children Act in 1982. This act authorizes
the Federal Bureau of Investigation to accept information about
missing children for entry into the National Crime Information
Computer from parents as well as local law enforcement agencies.
The act also authorizes parental verification that the information
has indeed been entered in the NCIC and establishes a clearing-
house on the unidentified dead. The usage of this system has in-
creased dramatically, from 10,000 entries in 1981 before the act
passed, to over 30,000 entries at this date. The utilization of the
NCIC system by local law enforcement agencies has proven success-
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ful in locating
their own hom

The Rhode Island State Police credit the NCIC system in discov-
ering that a car involved in an accident was registered to a person
sus of kidnapping a child from California. That child would
probably not have geen located and successfully returned to his
parents if the Missing Children Act had not been .

We passed the Missin Children’s Assistance Act of 1984 which
authorizes the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children,
with its toll-free number to receive reports and offer referrals and
tec anical assistance regarding all missing children in the United
States. This legislation also authorizes up to $10 million in Federal
grants for research, demonstration, and service programs to im-
prove our search for missing children. In 1984 we also reauthorized
the Juvenile Justice and Deliquency Prevention Act. We have in-
creased the involvement of businesses, corporations, and organiza-
tuns in distributing pictures and posters of miseing children.
Today, milk cartons, grocery bags, toll transfers, bowli cards, soft
drink packages, and inserts in your monthly utility bills all have
ictures of missing children displayed prominently. There is no
imit to the imagination of businesses in displaying these pictures
of missing children.

The distribution system is working. A 13-year-old runeway from

ifornia returned home to her mother after seeing her own pic-

tur2 on a milk carton. Another runaway was moved by seeing her
picture on a pizza carton, and she Jecided to return home. She said
for the first time, she realized how much her parents cared when
she saw the lengths they were going to in order to locate her. I per-
sonally talked to a young parentaf kidnapping victim who led
my office after watching the latest repeat of the TV drema,
“Xdam”. He missed his mother and wanted her to know he was
safe, }l:}xt he aiso did not want his father to get arrested for kidnap-
ping him.

We have made significant progress in our search for missing chil-
dren, but so much more needs to be done. T

g 00 many children are
still missing, too many police departments still treat runaways and

parental kidnapping as cases not worthy of their investigation or

involvement. Too many parents still have to fight prejudice and

misunderstanding before they are assisted in their search for a

gﬁ:;sing child. Children are still missing. Children are still in
ger.

We cannot rest on our successes. We simply cannot affcrd to
become complacent about this issue.
Although Adam Walsh was tragically murdered, John and Reve

They have set the standard and the exam
lies to get involved and stay involved.

ese parents are not ﬁihting Just for their own beautiful chil-
dren. They are working 24 hours a day to protect all children.

I see a lot of old friends at today’s hearing: John and Reve
Walsh; Jay Howell; Mayor Owens—individuals who have been in-
volved in this fight from the beginning.

e also see a lot of new faces—colleagues and businesses that
have been moved by the plight of missing children have Jjoined ue

missing children and returning them to the safety of
es.
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in our efforts to protect our Nation’s most precious resource—our
children and our future.

This Saturday has been designated by the President and by the
Congress as Missing Children Day, May 25. It was chosen as Miss-
ing Children Day because it was on that day in 1979 that Etan Patz
disap;l)eared, a few short blocks from home, while walking to
school.

Julie Patz, whe was with us 3% years ago, testified at that first
missing children hearing, and she had planned to testify today.
But, as you can imagine, the emotions of the day have overtaken
the Patz family, and they called this morning and asked that we
excuse them from this emotional time on the anniversary of their
little son’s disappearance.

Camille Bell had accepted also. She was with us 3% years ago.
Since her original appearance before our subcommittee, she has
become a constituent of mine in Florida and works with the Girl
Scouts. It is her work with the Girl Scouts, that keeps her from
being with us today. She stated, hcwever, that her interest, like
Julie Patz had not diminished. Their love for the friends they made
while making their original pleas befors this committee has not di-
minished.

At this time we will receive for the record statements by Senator
Hatch and Senator Dodd.

[The opening statements of Senators Hatch and Dodd, follows:]
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STATEMENT

SEHATOR ORRIN HATCH
HEARING ON “MISSING CHILDREN"

MapAME CHAIRMAN. I COMMEND MY COLLEAGUE FRoM FLORIDA,
SENATOR HAWKINS FOR CHAIRING A CHILDREN, FaMiLY. DRuGs AND
ALcOHOLISM SUBCOMMITTEE HEARING ON THE PROGRESS THAT HAS BEEN
MADE IN THE SEARCH FOR MISSING CHILDREN. [ WAS ONE OF THE FIRST
CO-SPONSORS OF THE MISSING CHILDREN'S ACT, AND SINCE ITS PASSAGE
IN 1982 SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS HAS BEEN MADE. HOWEVER. MUCH MORE
NEEDS TO BE ACCOMPLISHED IN LIGHT OF THE GROWING NUMBER OF CHILDREN
ANNUALLY FOUND TO BE LOST OR MISSING. IN UTAM JUST LAST YEAR. 65
CHILDREN WERE REPORTED MISSING AND 5 WERE FOUND DEAD. CAN ANYONE
BEGIN TO IMAGINE THE ANGUISH AND HEARTBREAK OF THEIR FAMILIES AND
FRIENDS? THESE FAMILIES WONDER IF THEY WILL EVER SEE THEIR CHILDREN
AGAIN.

BeFORE THE MisSING CHILDREN'S ACT WAS ENACTED. THE FEDERAL
BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION WAS UNDER NO OBLIGATION TO COLLECT INFORMATION
FROM STATE LAW AGENCIES. ONLY 107 OF THE CHILDREN MISSING WERE
ENTERED INTO THE NATIONAL MISSING PERSONS FILE. A MISSING AUTOMOBILE
COULD BE PLACED IN THE FEDERAL RECORDS IMMEDIATELY, BUT NO SUCH
ACTION WOULD BE TAKEN FOR A MISSING CHILD. THE MIsSING CHILDREN'S
AcT. wHicH | STRONGLY SUPPORTED IN 1982, AUTHORIZED THE FEDERAL
BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION TO ACCEPT INFORMATION ABOUT MISSING CHILDREN
FROM STATE AND LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES FOR ENTRY INTO THE
Nat1onaL CriME INFoORMATION CoMPuTER. IN 1984, A HATIONAL CENTER

Plsy s
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For MissinNG Anp ExpLoITED CHILDREN WAS ESTABLISHED WITH A TOLL-
FREE NUMBER TO RECEIVE REPORTS AND OFFER ASSISTANCE REGARDING
MISSING CHILDREN., THE NAT1ONAL CENTER HAS ASSISTES IN RECOVERING
370 CHILDREN WHOSE CASES HAVE COME TO THE ATTENTION OF THE CENTER
SINCE ITS INCEPTION,

AMERICANS EVERYWHERE ARE JOINING IN THE EFFORT TO LOCATE AND
ASSIST MISSING CHILDREN., WE HAVE INCREASED THE INVOLVEMENT OF THE

PRIVATE SECTOR THROUGH THE HELP OF OVER 100 VOLUNTARY ASSOCIATES.
WHO NOT ONLY PROVIDE ASSISTANCE To THE NATIONAL CENTER FOR Missine
AND ExPLOITED CHILDREN, BUT ASSIST OTHER PRIVATE ORGANIZATIONS AND
COMPANIES. BUSINESSES ANC CORPORATIONS HAVE CONTRIBUTED IN MANY
SIGNIFICANT WAYS TO SPREAD THE MESSAGE CONCERNING MISSING CHILDREN.
THIS EFFORT INCLUDES THE DISSEMINATION OF POSTERS AND PICTURES OF
MISSING CHILDREN IN IMAGINATIVE WAYS SUCH AS ON MILK CARTONS.
GROCERY BAGS, AND EVEN IN MONTHLY UTILITY BiLLS. THE ENDEAVORS

OF THESE PRIVATE BUSINESSES HAVE BEEN EXEMPLARY AND THEY SHOULD BE
COMMENDED ON ALL OF THEIR EFFORTS TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL SUPPORT AND
OTHER ASSISTANCE IN SUPPORT OF MISSING CHILDREN.

PRESIDENT REAGAN HAS ALSO STRONGLY ENDORSED THIS EFFORT., RECENTLY.
HE PROCLAIMED May 25 as Missing CHiLDREN'S Dav, THROUGH THIS
PROCLAMATION, PRESIDENT REAGAN 1S INCREASING OUR AWARENESS OF THIS
NATIONAL PROBLEM, AND HE HAS URGED THAT EVERY AMERICAN FAMILY TAKE
PROPER PRECAUTIONS TO PRCTECT THEIR CHILDREN.

TODAY, AS A FURTHER STEP TO HELP THE MISSING CHILDREN OF THIS
COUNTRY, | HAVE CO-AUTHORED A LETTER WITH SENATOR SPECTER AND

[y




SENATOR HEINZ. IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE NATIOMAL CENTER, wHICH
URGES THE TELEVISIIN NETWORKS TO AIR PICTURES OF MISSING CHiLDREN
AS PART OF THEIR REGULAR PROGRAMMING AND TO ASSIST THE NATIONAL
CENTER TO PUBLICIZE [T$S HOTLINE AND INFORMATIONAL SERVICES.
NATIONWIDE ATTENTION IS ESSENTIAL IF MISSING CHILDREN ARE TO BE
LOCATED AND THE USE OF THE MEDIA IS A VITAL STEP IN THIS EFFORT.

EVEN WITH THIS TREMENDOUS SUPPORT AND PROGRESS ON THE FEDERAL
LEVEL. THZ FOCUS OF OUR ATTENTION SHOULD BE AT THE STATE AND LOCAL
LEVEL. STATES MUST QUICKLY ENACT CHILD PROTECTION LEGISLATION AND.

IF APPROPRIATE., ESTABLISH CLEARINGHOUSES TO KEEP TRACK OF MISSING
CHILDREN, FOUND CHILDREN AND UNIDENTIFIED DEAD BODIES. | uRGE

STATES TO LOOK AT THEIR LAWS TO ENSURE THAT LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES

CAN TAKE THE REPOKT OF A MISSING CHILD AND IMMEDIATELY ENTER [~

INTO THE NATIONAL CRIME INFORMATION CompuTEK CENTER. PRESENTL 1 ONLY SiX
STATES HAVE ENACTED SUCH LEGISLATION, AND MUCH MORE OBVIOUSLY

REMAINS TO BE DONE.

THIS IS A PROLOGUE TO ALL WE MUST DO TO CONTINUE 7O RESPOND T0
THE PLIGHT OF MISSING THILDREN., THANKS TO THE ENDEAVORS OF JOHN
UaLSH, JAY HOWELL. LIRSCTOR OF THE YATIONAL CENTER, AND ESPECIALLY
TO THE LEADERSHIP OF SENATOR HAWKINS MUCH HAS BEEN ACCOMPLISHED AT
THE FEDERAL LEVEL, AND MANY STATE LEGISLATURES ARE BECOMING AWARE
OF THE PROBLEMS ASSOCIATED WITH PASSAGE OF CHI.™ PROTECTION
LEGISLATION. ALERTING STATE LEGISLATORS ABOUT THE CONCERNS OF
CHILD PROTECTION IS THE NEXT OBSTACLE THAT MUST BE OVERCOME IN
QUR FIGHT TO PROTECT OUR CHILDREN FROM BEING EXPLOITED.
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OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR CHRISTOPHER J. DODD

Senator Dopp. Madam Chairman, this morning we will examine
the plight of missing children.

Although we lack exact data on numbers, we know that hun-
dreds of thousands of children in this country go missing every
year. The myjority of such missing children are runaways. It is im-
portant to remember that most children who run away are fleeing
What they perceive as an intclerable situation at home. Police
chiefs from Connecticut to California will tell you that over half of
all runaways were sexually abused before making the decision to
run. Other missing children are abducted by noncustodial parents.
Yet others are abducted by strangers.

All missing children are at serious risk of physical, sexual, and
emotional abuse. Far too many missing children become the tragic
victims of homicide.

Madam Chairman, over the past several years, Congress has
acted on behalf of missing children. I commend you for all your
work on this issue. et me aiso express my sincerest admiration
and appreciation to John and Reve Walsh for all their efforts. They
have managed to turn a personal tragedy surrounding the murder
of their son Adam into hope. fo." :many other children at risk. The
Walsh’s courage and determination is a lesson for us all.

This morning, we will hear an assessment of where we are and
where we should be going. Attorney General Joe Liecberman, whom
I am proud to say is from my State of Connecticut, has been doing
a wonderful job of putting both procedural safeguards and preven-
tion programs intc place. I look forward to hearing his testimony
and that of all the other distinguished witnesses here today.

In closing, let me say that much attention in the media has been
given to the plight of the child who has been abducted by a strang-
er. Such abductions are now correctly viewed as criminal matters
to be handled by law enforcement personnel to the fullest. If we
are to make further progress in protecting our children, we must
come to see other missing children as being at risk of criminal as-
sgult. By even the most conservative estimates, one out of every
three noncustodial parents who abduct their children have already
been charged with child abuse. Likewise, a runaway who hits the
streets is often no better able to protect herself or himself from
physical and sexual assault than a child who has been abducted.

Last year, the New England Chilé Welfare directors estimated
that we hed 2,200 runaways and 32 child abductions in our region.
I look forward to hearing from our witnesses today how we can
help locate those missing children and prevent others from going
missing in New England and across the country.

Senator HawkINs. Today our first panel consists of John and
Reve Walsh, the parents of Adam Walsh. We all know—that our
efforts to end the national tragedy of missing children is working;
the affirmation of undieing efforts annually by this country and by
the networks, and especially by these brave parents have really
been a motivating force in helping us find children.

John and Reve founded the Adam Walsh Child Resource Centers
in the United States. I am happy that two of them are in my State.

11
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At this time, we would like to welcome you again and commend
you again for all of the wonderful work that you do, and ask if you
have a statement, please.

STATEMENT OF JOHN AND REVE WALSH, FOUNDERS, ADAM
WALSH CHILD RESOURCE CENTERS

Mr. WaisH. Thank you very much, Senator Hawkins.

We are very pleased and honored to be here again today, and we
would like to commend you, particularly, our Senator, and often
called the children’s Senator by us and by other people, for your
wonderful work on behalf of children of this country.

It was a pretty rude awakening in 1981, on my first trip up here,
to ask someone, “Where can I go to use an office or a typewriter?
Where is the children’s building?” I had been past the National
Rifle Association Lobby building, I hsd been past the ASPCA four-
story building. Where is the building for children, and where is
their lobby? I was surprised to find out there wasn’t one.

We have come a long way in those 4 years. You have been in-
strumental in the passage of the Missing Children’s bills, you and
your colleagues, the Missing Children’s Assistance bill; the creation
of the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children; the
analysis of violent crime, the National Center for Analysis of Vio-
lent Crime at Quantico, VA, you helped in those hearings to track
mobile and serial murderers who roam this couatry coast-to-coast,
preying on_women and children, and the implementation and
changes of FBI policy on children. I think those are all things that
can be .itributed to your hard work and your colleagues’ hard
work.

We have certainly accomplished certain things on the Federal
level and made a lot of strides since 1981, but unfortunately, those
accomplishments have not translated down to the local and State
level. The real battle now is on the State levels, and all the things
that we have accomplished on the Federal level have not been im-
plemented, or are not being utilized by the individual States.

I know you have some questions to ask us, so we will be glad to
answer those questions. Some of our answers involve what the
problem is on the local and State level, what our experiences have
been over the last 4 years, going State to State, to a different city
and a different State almost every day, and what stili needs to be
done.

So, we acquiesce to your questions.

Senator HAWKINS. Reve, how would you characterize the change
in the public’s awareness of the plight of missing children since
19817 I know you have an overview of the entire situation that we
may not have from the Senate.

Mrs. WaLsH. Senator, we have been successful in changing the
attitude of the public, and obviously, from your display here today,
everyone is involved. We have made the public aware that all the
children that are missing are not runaways, that if they are run-
aways, they are running from intolerable situations, and if they
are parentally abducted, they are often subject to lives on the run
and loneliness and yearning for the relatives that they have left

12
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behind, and of course, the sexual exploitation of the children who
are abducted by strangers an4 by so-called friends.

There is awareness on the Federal level. I think everything is
being done at the National Center that we can expect. As John
said, the States are slow in reacting. But there is one grcup, I
think, that we have forgotten, that being the children, and the par-
ents that are sitting back, wringing their hands and wondering,
“What shall we do?’

" lldren are afraid because they are out there by themselves,
ana I think the only answer to that problem is that we have to in-
still some sort of program in the schools, perhaps, that would teach
our children how to be safe on the streets.

Safety with strangers is one exam‘fle that the Adam Walsh
Center has put together. We have five Adam Walsh Centers now—I
wish we had one in every State. The importance of keeping the
public awarencss on a local icvel, to liaison with the National
Center, is in my eyes very important.

The children are scared. They want to know what to do. And ev-
erything that is being done on the Federal level is really wonder-
ful, but it is after the fact. We need proactive programs to teach
our children how to be safe—on their way to school, during school,
and at play.

We also need funds for those Centers. I would love to see some of
those funds trickle down to the Adam Walsh Centers, to the Child
Finds, to the other organizations that are out there, frantically
trying to keep their budgets and stay open for 1 more montk.

As I said, it is a struggle to meet the cost of operations eve
month at our Center. We must keep a high profile to keep our chil-
dren safe, and this can only be done by funding—partial funding
from the Government, possibly in one of the grants that are allo-
cated to children, to trickle down to the local Centers.

Once again, we need your help.

Senator Hawkins. Reve, I went to a fund-raiser in Orlando, FL,
my home town, that was put on by the Adam Walsh Resource
Center. I was pleased by the tremendous turnout. But I was also
struck by the contrast in a fund-raiser we held 3 weeks earlier for
the symphony, which was packed to the doors, and they may still
be there dancing and having a good time.

It seems to me that we still have a lot of work to do, Reve and
John, in getting our priorities in the right order. We support the
symphony, and we the opera, and we support of all the cultural
events that have to be supported in our city and in our State by
voluntary contibution. However, over the years, I have come to be-
lieve that maybe we should have a higher priority. Giving money
to a Children’s Resource Center may be a little foreign to the citi-
zens that give charitable contributions. Hopefully, we can have a
lot of these fund-rawsers throughout the country and realign our
priorities. If you have “x” amount of money to give away this year
in charitable contributions to the Red Cross, and to cancer, and to
the heart ball, and all the many galas that we go to for disease re-
search, brain research—I am trying to think of the many things I
have been to in the last month that were all supported by volun-
tary contributions—I think maybe part of our work today and from
this day on is to join you in having a higher priority on those bene-
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fits that are given throughout the country that can use the volun-
tary contributions earmarked for children at risk.

I thank you for telling me that you have a benefit scheduled De-
cember the 1st in Palm Beach. You have a lot of lead time, and
hopefully, it will be the most successful charitable event we have
in Palm Beach this year.

If you will excuse me, John and Reve, Senator Nickles has joined
us. I will like to announce that Senator Dodd, Senator Grassley,
Senator Metzenbaum, and Senator Bradley will be joining us short-
ly. We all have many conflicts on this last day of the session.

Senator Nickles, we welcome you.

Senator NickLes. Thauk you, Chairman.

I want to thank you again for your leadership, and also the
Walshes. I think you have hel provide this Nation with leader-
ship in this area that, quite y, needed to be provided, and
through your tragedy, I think you are saving a lot of livez, and 1
app: eciate your willingness to make that sacrifice. I know it is
painful, I know it is difficult. But I can tell you for one, we were
involved in trying to help find some missing children in Oklahoma,
and her picture was shown after the show on Adam, and she was
found in Canada, and she is now back with her mother.

So, there are some success stories. A lot of times, we focus on %2
ones that did not turn out successful, but I think we also need to
look at the ones that have been successful. You and I both know
that there are many lives that have been saved because of your ef-
forts and, really, the efforts of thousands of organizations.

I see several organizations that are trying different types of pub-
licity measures, I guess, to try and help identify children. I know in
my State of Oklahoma, we now have one of the newspapers that is
running it on a frequent basis, Tulsa World, one of the larger news-
papers in the State of Oklahoma. We have TV stations that do it
on a very regular basis, now showing pictures and trying to say
these children are missing, and have you seen them.

Madam Chairman, you are talking about a fund-raiser, and I
compliment you and the Walshes for having some fund-raisers in
Florida. I would tell you that I will certainly lend my support, and
maybe we could do one in Washington, DC, and quite frankly, we
might be able to do quite well in Washington, DC. We are ways
raising money in other endeavors. We might put our shoulders to
the wheel in a bipartisan measure and, quite frankly, we might be
quite successful, and I will certainly be more than willing to work
with you in that endeavor.

I am pleased when I see as much progress—you were here a year
ago before the committee, is that right?

Mr. Waish. I think annually we come.

Senator NickLes. Annually; I appreciate your doing that. And I
can tell you, we see some progress. We have seen a lot of prtLgress.
I notice on the grocery sacks in Oklahome and ir Washingtoh, DC,
we will see pictures. I know in our case, Oklahoma Natural Gas,
one of our larger utilities, is now enclosing pictures with their
monthly statements. So there has been tremendous progress, but
yet there are still a lot of missing children, so we still have a lot of
work to do. It may require funding of your Center, it may require a
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lot of other encouragement, public aud private, to try and lend
some additional exposure, and we are certainly wiliing to do that.

Again, I waat to congratulate you for not sitting back, and for
your aggressive leadership. You have really helped a lot of people,
and reunited some families, and for that, I am most gratefumd I
hope we will be successful in giving you, I think, some additional
exposure, but not only thet, possibly helping the cause by financial
and other means. We want to do what we can.

So thank you again for your appearance—annual appearance, I
guess—before this Committee.

Mr. WaLsH. Thank you, Senator.

Senator HAwkiINs. John, I am 8o araazed and dismayed by indi-
viduals and organizations vho dismiss runaways and ntal kid-
nappings as not worthy of serious attenrtion—you and I have dis-
cussed this several times. I talked yesterdaﬁawith a law enforce-
ment official who has the misconception that children who are
with a parent, or who leave their homes voluntarily, are not in any
real danger.

Mr. WaLsH. Unfortunately, as much as we seem to have accom-
plished, I feel we are still at square one with certain law enforce-
ment agencies and certain States. Right here in the Nation’s Cap-
itol, the District of Columbia, it is the only area in the country—
although it is not a State—it is the last area that the crime of non-
custodial parental kidnapping is not a felony, right here in the Dis-
trict of Columbia. So a parent of a missing child in this District
will not be able to get law enforcement reaction to help him or her
with the plight of their missing child.

The attitude still is by law enforcement throughout the country,
by judges, district attorneys, that: “The child is with another
parent; they were safe.”

They fished an 8-year-old girl out of the East River a couple of
years ago with a note left behind by a noncustodial dadd}y; who took
?er,,,saying, “l am leaving my ex-wife tl.e way I found her—child-

ess.

Some of the children we have retrieved from the Roll Call Adam
were taken out of this country. Two little boys were taken to
Wales. Not only were they told that their mother was dead; they
were told that they were wanted felons in the United States, and
criminals, at 7 and 9 years old. Fortunately, a schoolteacher from
Wales saw the movie, “Adam,” in London, got a cassette of it, went
back, and we extradited those children back here.

Those are children at risk. They are taken under the worst cir-
cumstances. They are taken in an act of revenge, not in an act of
love. The left-behind parent does not know what happened to those
children. Many times, those children are told that the parent they
were taken from no longer loves them; they are dead. They are
d;auiéggd around the country; some of them are seriously physically
a .

I hosted a special on Westinghouse, the Group W Channel, about
parents’ greatest fear, and it was about noncustodial parental ab-
duction. About 50 percent of those cases are women, so let us not
get the misconception that only daddies steal their children. But
this happened to be the cases of noncustodial fathers who took
their daughters in five unrelated cases, between the ages of 8 and
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11 years old, and turned their own daughters out as prostitutes,
charging as little as $20 to have sex with their own daughters, as
they ran around the country, living out of dumpsters, to avoid pros-
ecution. It is a serious offense—it is a felony—and we have not
prosecuted in this country.

As relates to runaways, the attitude toward runaways is still ab-
horrent to me, the police response to this. We have found out that,
yes; 90 percent of the missing children voluntarily leave home. Yes;
they return within 48 hours, a week, maybe a year—maybe they
never return. But they are usually, 85 to 90 percent of them, run-
ning from horrible physical or sexusl abuse at home.

Now, we have a new phenomenon—the throwaway. An excellent
movie documentary called “Streetwise” was done about it—an 11-
year-old girl, thrown out on the streets of Seattle by a prostitute
junkie mother; a 12-year-old boy, forced out when his father was in
prison, by an alcohol-abusing mother. He hung himself after 3
months on the street, refusing to become a child prostitute. The
first night on the street for the little girl, her jaw was broken by a
pimp.

Imagine being put out on the streets by the only person you ever
loved—not voluntarily, not being a runaway, but being a throw-
away. Imagine tonight, your wife kicks tyou out, Senator Nickles, or
E):: husband puts you on the streets of Washington, Senator Haw-

ins, with no credit cards, no checkbook, no money. You would be
scared. Imagine if you are a 12- or 13-year-old girl or boy, and you
have been put out on the street.

And as it relates to runaways, the first 17 of the 29 children that
were murdered in Atlanta were listede-ll)ly the police as runaways,
even though some of them were as small as 9 years old and gifted
students. Why? Because they were black; because they were pre-
dominantly welfare, single-parent mothers. Is that any reason to
list a child as a runaway? It took those mothers until the 17th
murder to convince the Atlanta police that their children were not
runaways, and someone was murdering them.

And it happens to cops, too. John Wayne Gacey, a long-time con-
victed child molester on parole in Chicago from the State of Iowa,
who set himself up as a peer of the community and a volunuteer,
killed 33 boys--and one of those boys was the son of a policeman,
Sergeant Robert Gilroy of the Chicago Police. Because his son was
16, because he was a boy, even thoagh he was an ali-American high
school football player, his car was in the drivewas, he was walking
home from the McDonald’s he worked at; his girlfriend was sitting
there, having dinner with Sergeant Robert Gilroy, waiting for his
son. Sergeant Gilroy could not convince his peers at the Chicago
Police Department that his son was not a runaway. Sergeant
Robert Gilroy spent 2 years and everi nickel he could borrow,
searching for his son, never knowing he was buried four blocks
away in Gacey’s basement with 32 other bogs.

Police must change their attitude toward runaways and missing
children—even if they are voluntarily missing, someone wants to
know what happened to them. We are still burying hundreds of un-
identified dead children in this country because police refuse to
enter them into the National Crime Information Computer, and
States have not mandated the entry and kept up with that. Only
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six States have clearinghouses now. I am going to talk about that
later, when we talk about some of the State reaction to the prob-
lem. But all children must be listed.

We cannot get an accurate handle on the statistics of missing
children, what is happening te the children in this country. There
is all types of speculation about the numbers, all types of distorted
ideas, because police retuse to still put children in there.

I say it is time we gave children the dignity of a missing child
report, and put them in the computer—the same dignity that we
give cars—and time to change the attitudes about those runaways,
because they may have voluntarily left the house, but in many
cases, they are going from the frying pan into the fire.

Senator HAWKINS. Reve, I am constantly amazed, and you and I
discussed this several times, by the innovative methods in which
businesses are now helping us display pictures of missing children.
We know the picture is the best tool we have today in locating a
child, especially if the child sees the picture of himself or herself, I
am also concerned at the number of phone calls I receive daily,
about being careful in choosing the right instrument to print the
child’s picture on.

There are some requests that come before me ttat I feel are not
right, despite good intentions, well-intentioned though they may be,
some displays just do not take into consideration the feelings of the
parents of the missing children. How do you feel about this?

Mr. WaLsH. They are being publicized, and any bit of publication
that we can get, of course, is helpful. But i think that the public is
starting to feel a little bit of overkill because now, as Jay Howell
will speak about later, there are some very commercial ways, not
only commercial, but some ways that we are not really fond of, of
showing the children’s pictures.

We appreciate the exposure, but again, we do not want to create
the feeling that there is an hysterical movement going on in this
country, and that every commercial manufacturer wants to benefit
from publicizing missing children’s pictures.

I can only reiterate that I deal more with the pro-active end of it.
I let John and Jay handle the aftermath. But if we can only instill
in our children the rules of protection and again, mandate schools
to help us with this and teach them how to be safe during school
hours, after and before, I think that this in itself will be a more
realistic approach to the problem.

Senator Hawkins. Well, I know I personally did not feel it was
tasteful to put missing children’s pictures on packages of meat that
had been cut up and packaged in the grocery store. That turns me
off, and I wonder, should we have a council almost on a weekly
basis as to what is tasteful and what is not, and work with the
Missing Children’s Center and you all, in making that decision.

John, in Florida, as you know, a list of missing children is dis-
tributed to each school district, and they are required to check the
names against the enrollment. In Broward County, which is the
home of the Space Center, they have a new computer that can scan
the list in 20 minutes of the entire enrollment of school each morn-
ing. The first time they tried this computer, they found 14 children
enrolled that were listed as “missing’”’. Many of the children were
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on the list simply because the parent had never bothered to notify
the police that the child had been safely returned.

Do other States, to your knowledge, John, disseminate lists of
missin%;:hildren to the schools?

Mr. WaLsH. Some do; most do not. In almost any State in this
country, you cannot register your child in a school unless you have
proof of a smallpox vaccination, but it could be a stolen child. Not
only a noncustogl(;.l' parental abduction can you enter your child in
a school and hide your child out in another State; stranger abduc-
tions, that also happens.

A famous pedophile who stole Steven Stayner in the California
case, who kept him for 7 years, had the audacity to enter Steven
Stayner, a stranger-abducted child, into the school system within
California, and that child functioned in the school system. You
cannot get into school without proof of a vaccination, but you can
enter a stolen child in almost any school in this country.

Senator HAwkins. Could you tell us for the record your a?eri-
ence going State to State with the package that we created for
model State legislation? I know it has probably met with some ac-
ceptance and some rejection. Would you like to go over that report
at this time?

Mr. WatLsi. I have spent most of the past 2 years in the effort
going State to State. Jay Howell and I put together a package of
suggested State legislation where the States could enact meaning-
ful legislation—nothing revolutionary, nothing controversial,
things that had been passed in some States—in hoping to get
States to the same level with the protection and rights or children.
I think I have addressed something like 20-some State legislatures
and met with over 20 Governors. Unfortunately, we have failed
miserably in some States and have had success in others.

For example, the State of Georgia, with 29 murdered children in
the city of Atlanta, you would think would become a leading State,
following the model of Florida and South Carolina on their north-
ern and soutkern borders, establishing statewide clearinghouses for
missing chiidren, passing pro-active legislation. All the legislation
we introduced into the Georgia legislature this year, 28 bills, only 2
of them passed at the end of the session.

I will give you examples of what needs to be done. Only 7 States
have mandated that they have clearinghouses in those States and
that there be immediate entrv into the National Crime Informa-
tion Computer of a missing child report. We are talking about a
simple piece of legislation that says all law enforcement in what-
ever State, the State of Oklahoma, must take the report of a miss-
ing child immediately and enter it into the National Crime nfor-
mation Computer—not search—we know they are overburcened
and understaffed, and we are not asking them to make a search for
every missing child. We are simply asking them. to give children
the same dignity as a stolen car and by mandate, put that child
into the National Crime Information Computer, so that searching
parents will not have to spend the rest of their lives not knowing
that child was buried in an unmarked grave.

Case-in-point, Pablo Torres, in New York City, a State that does
not mandate it. In a special following “Adam”, it showed his poor
Puerto Rican father borrowing money to distribute posters of
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Pablo. Pablo was 16 years old and retarded. The New York City
Police did not put him in the National Crime Information Comgilb-
er. Pablo wandered the streets, was picked up by New York ity

Police, and has been kept in a home for the last 2 months until the -

airing of that special, at a cost of $23,000 to the taxpayers of New
York State, and when he was found, he was not entered into the
NCIC nor was a search made for him, so he was put in this home
for 2 months or was retained in that home for 2 months.

I will give you an example of the reluctance of law enforcement
to use the NCIC; that is why it must be mandated. The chief of
police of the largest police agency in the United States, the Los An-
geles Police Department, Darrell Gates, writing a letter to Senator
Robert Presley, a State Senator who has introduced a bill emulat-
ing and copying the missing children bills in other States, creati
a clearinghouse and mandatory entry. Let me read from Darre
Gates’ letter why he opposes Senator Presley’s bill.

“(hlrrenit:egrocedures mandate that a telephonic missing report
be completed immediately when a child is misgsing” a telephone
report, over the phone. That is the policy of the Los Angeles Pciice.

‘If misging child has not been located within a reassnable
amount of time, usually 24 hours’—coroners have testifizd here
many times that many small children abducted by molesters are
murdered within 24 hours; here is a police agency that coes not
even take the report for 24 hours”—a formal missing report is com-
pleted, and the information regarding the missing juvenile is tele-
typed in there by agencies.” What if the child is in Nevada? What
if the -hild is in Oklahoma? What good does “nearby agencies” do
when the child has been extrapolated from the State within & 24~
hour period?

“An immediete search is begun when a child is under 11 dyears of
age, or appears warranted.” God forbid it is your 12-year-old daugh-
ter or your 13-year-old son.

“Missing juvenile information is entered into the NCIC only if
the minor has not been located within 7 days.” My God, who would
want to wait 7 days and find out, and take a guess whether Dairell
Gates and the Los Angeles Police Department decided to put your
missing child in?

The final blow: “Had this Department been required to enter all
missing juvenile information into the NCIC system within 12
hours, in 1983, we would have had to have made over 16,000 en-
tries and then removed most of them immediately”’—saying in here
that it takes too much time, too much effort in 16 years to enter
16,000 entries.

I asked Judge Webster to get from the NCIC how many stolen
cars California entered in one month. The State of California en-
tered 16,400 stolen cars in a one-month period. I think it is time we
give our children the same dignity that police give a stolen car and
take a 20-minute report.

I spoke to law enforcement agencies in Colorado, dJay and I, and
one policeman said, “I don’t want {9 put missing kids into the com-
puter. I have a little girl that has run away four times.”

I said, “I would like to answer that question.”

The policeman said, “No. Let me answer it for you, Mr. Wawsh.”
He said, “What does it take you—15 minutes to taKe that report? It
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takes you 15 seconds to purge it when that child is found.” He said
someone, whether that child is a chronic runaway, or a missing
child, some grandma, some mommy somewhere would like to know
where that body is if that body has been found.

So, there is a response from the chief of police of the largest
police agency in the country.

As it relates to other pieces of legislation, background checks of

ple who work with children failed miserably in certain States.
me States have passed background checks of teachers, daycare
center workers, volunteers. Big Brothers and Big Sisters around
the country have been lobbying State legislatures. Eighty-seven Big
Brothers molested 87 Little Brothers last year; daycare scandals all
over the country.

Magor Koch, because the New York State Legislature did not
pass background checks, did it in the city of New York, on the
front page of the New York Times—of the 2,000 daycare center
workers mandated to have background checks, the first 80 reports
came back, and 37 of those were convicted felons.

In every State in this Nation, in 49 of those States, there are at
least 50 occupations that are mandated to have a background
check. You cannot be a doctor or a lawyer, you cannot be a police-
man in 49 Siates; in 35 States, you cannot be a hairdresser; you
cannot work at a racetrack; you cannot work in a parmutual gam-
bling endeavor in any State in this country without a State and
Federal background check; you cannot rub down a horse, be a
groom at a racetrack, without a State and Federal background
check. But in most States in this country, you can teach school or
work in a daycare center, even though you were a previously con-
victed felon of child molestation or child murder.

When Florida passed background checks of teachers, we had 300
sexual assaults of children by schoolteachers. We had 37 convicted
felons teaching school in the State of Florida. One was a child mur-
derer from the State of Illinois who served 6 years.

The States that have passed background checks of daycare center
workers, schoolteachers, et cetera—and it is not a violation of civil
liberties; it only shows up what your felony convictions were, not if
you painted the high school reg not what your sexual preference
is—those States have seen a decrease of 500 percent as an average
of molestations by daycare center workers.

Where are those child molesters that work with people—most of
the people who work with children are wonderful; we are not sin-
gling them out, this is not a witch hunt; we are just saying give our
children the same civil liberties—where are those penple going?
They must be going to the States that do not have background
checks, because the incidences have been reduced in the States
that have them.

Some other examples of State legislation that has failed miser-
ably. Competency of the child witness. The Federal Rules of Evi
dence say that every witness in the courtroom in a Federal trial,
civil or criminal, is presumed competent. But in State courtrcoms
in 25 States, judges are allowed to disqualify child witnesses. We
say let the jury decide. If you are a convicted murderer or a patho-
logical liar, there is no competency test in any courtroom in this
counfry. Any adult can testify. But 25 State legislatures allow
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judges to disquality children because of competency rulings, deter-
mining whether the child has the ability to tell the truth or not to
tell the truth.

Whether the child is makini it up or not—in most cases, they
are not—let us give children the same dignity that we are giving
adults in the courtroom.

Some of the other laws—privacy of the child victim. In every
State in this Nation, it is against the law for the media to use the
name of a juvenile delinquent. But only three States have passed
laws prohibiting the media from using the name and address of a
victim in a sexual assault. It is tough enough to go through the
court system. It is tough enough to get over the trauma, to get your
child through the court svstem once they become a victim of sexual
abuse. It is twice as tough for them fo go back to school—or a
woman—in many States, they have prohibited the media from
doing this for a woman. It is fough enough %9 go back to your job
when everyone at your job, or everyone in the school, knows that
you were sodomized 15 times by the motorcycle club or that you
were raped by a live-in boyfriend. It is tough. And that has been
upheld in a Supreme Court decis.on in 1975, saying that States can
prohibit the media from using the name of a sexual assault victim
in any type of media, newspaper, radio, whatever.

Training allocated toward education, training of police, social
worker teams, those are not being done. Only about six or seven
States have allocated hard funds to get multidisciplinary teams to
work with children in the courtroom, to train police on how to look
for a missing child and how to liaison with parents.

These types of legislation are needed. They have failed miserably
in certain States. Some States have passed as man{ as 25 laws,
Sorﬁ;: States are years behind in passing mean:ngful legislation for
children.

In California, the criminal penalties for kidnapping u child, the
maximum penalty is 7 years. The man who kidnagped Steven
Stayner and kept him in his basement and molested this boy for 7
years, destroying his future and his emotiona! abilit to cope with
the situation, served a total of 2V: years in the California prison
system and was just released recently with no probation, no parole,
or no mandated psychiatric counse ing. Steven Stayner’s mother
said before the California press: “This man had my sor for 7 years
and molested him continuously, got sick of him and stole another
little bo&,hMy son escaped with that little boy, at 13 years old, and
Timmy White was 6 years old—escaped; he is a hero.” The State of
Celifornia in those cgiys did not pay for the rehabilitation of vie-
tims. This man received rehabilitation in prison, but because he did
his time, good time, he served 2+ years. He served less time in the
California prison time than the time that he kidnap; >d her son.

Criminal codes need to be changed throughout this country. In
many States, for crimes against children, the penalties are lesser
than for crimes against adults.

Why is this legislation failing-I am anticipating your question,
now. Why is it failing miserably? It has been a real education for
me in the last 3'2 years. I have testified before many joint sessions
of legislation. I have seen bills watered-down. I have seen desals
made. I have seen lobbyists fron: $50,000 a year to $100,000 a year
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salaries d :scond vipon legislators at the last minute and say, “Get
my bill out, get the Pharmaceutical bill out, get the Medical bill,”
or “Get the Roadbuilders’ bill out”.

Children’s legislation is very rarely opposed, but it does not seem
to make it out of committee. t was our problem here. It tonk us
18 months to get the Missing Children’s bill. It is magnified worse
at the State level.

In Alabama, we just passed nine laws—not because the wonder-
ful legislators of Alabama deemed it important enough to get thcse
bills out. Fifteen hundrcd parents and PTA members descended
upon the Alabama legislature with pictures of their children and
their own children, and broke the filibuster and got the laws out.
That is what needs to be done.

But unless the States react and pass this mean:agful legislation
for children, all that we are accomplishing on the Federal level
means nothing. We have learned one thing: Law is permanent.
Law will affect social change for my new children, it will affect
social change for your children. These Federal Congressmen are
raising their children in their States, but yet they probably have
no idea how bad their States are and how at-risk thetr children are
in those States. Law will force certain agencies to respond that do
not want to, and it will empower agencies that w:-. to respond
with mouey and the ability to do it.

Law may not be the entire answer to the problem of missing, ex-
ploited, molested, abducted children in the courtroom and the
system. Education, awareness, prevention, they are the key. I be-
lieve they are the key, as Reve says. But 1 believe it is time that
the lawmakers of this country—on the Federal level!,u?'es, we have
accomplished certain things; there are a lot of child advocates here
now on the Federal level—but on the local and particularly the
State level, that those lawmakers give our children the same status
and the same equal rights and the same civil berties that for
years they have given adults—und cars, in many States.

We are having a difficult time. We asked President Reagan to
make the call to action at the end of the movie “Adam”, and he
did. He said the real battle is now on the State and local level.

I have had my heart broken this year several times in State leg-
islatures. I addressed a joint session in North Carolina with a full,
packed audience of public individuals there, and saw the Missi,
Children’s bill defeated by one Senator and held up for 7 days, an
the Lieutenant Governor of the State apologizing publicly to myself
and the parents in that room, and finding out that that Senator
had not even read the bill, did not know what they were doing, but
opposed it because it was brought to bear and intrcduced by his
archenemy, who had just defeated a bill he had introduced the
month before. That is the tyge of things that parents are suffering
throughout this country in State legislatures. That is the type u:
things that are being extrapolated from bills with letters from
chiefs of police like Darrell Gates. I

The Missing Children’s bill in New York State set up a clearing-
house, hut at the last minute, mandatory entry was extrapolated;
the guts were taken out of that bill.

New York City buries the most unidentified dead people in the
world. Go to Potter’s Field someday and look at tke tens of thou-
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sands of graves. But yet, the New York City Police are very reluc-
tant to use the National Crime Information Computer anfiy}isting
them and cooperating.

New Jersef' is furious. They have a good Missing Children’s bill
and a lot of legislation. They say our children are taken across the
line, or they go into New York City—but how are we ever going to
find out that they are there, if New York State cannot pass bills
with guts in them?

It is a real problem, Senator. We are failing miserably in some
States. Some States have done wonderful things. But God forbid if
¥our child is taken out of a good State and taken into a poor State.

ou may never know that your child is in that State, alive or dead,
because of inability to react to the situation, or nonmandatory
entry into the NCIC, for example.

A little girl that was found just before the movie “Adam”—Presi-
dent Reagan said “Watch these 60 little faces” —well, we only
showed £4 little faces. Why? Because we found six children 2 weeks
before ‘ne third airing of “Adam”, and we had to extrapolate them
from the roll call. The good news: three alive; the bad news: three
murdered. One was Christie Lynn Meeks, who was misidentified b
a corcner in the State of Texas—you do not even have to be a meci
ical doctor to be coroner in the State of Texas—in an autopsy as a
little boy, even though she had Sesame Street sneakers on, her
body was partially decomposed, and she had frilly underwear.

Tiose parents spent about 5 weeks searching everywhere for
their daughter. A dogged, overworked investigator at the }ational
Center, one of Jay’s people, would not give up on the case and said,
“Before you bury that child, pull him out of the refrigerator one
more time.”

And they said, “No, no, no. It is closed, case is closed. The autop-
sy was performed.”

We got them to pull the body out, and they said, “Oh, my God,
w.elhave made a fatal mistake. This isn’t a little boy. This is a little
glr ."

Imagine the Meeks family spending the rest of their lives search-
ing for their daughter, never knowing she was buried in Texas.

We need to change the laws on the State level and make the
States react with what we have accomplished on the Federal level.
I think it is time that those lawmake1s realize—and I have said it
again before, because I have seen it in every State capital—there is
no lobby for children; they do not have any money; they do not
vote. I will say it again. I have seen it in almost every State that I
have been in. I have had to line up behind the lobbyists, pushing
their way into these individual doors. The protection of chi dren,
the ?uality of their lives, is determined by lawmakers, by you, by
legislators, by you parents and you grandparents. And it is time
that we realize that we must give them the same status, the same
rights, the same protections that we have given adults through the
law in this country for years.

Senator Hawkins. Thank you, John, for your eloquent testimony.

Could you give us the six States that have passed missing chil-
dren legislation?

Mr. WaLsH. New Jersey, Iowa, Kentucky, Illinois, Florida. Seven-
teen States have it on the boards now for this summer. Unfortu-
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nately, many States are out-of-session now, and we failed in many
States. But it is not too late. With your help and this attention
today, many States are still in legislature, and we can crank these
bills up.

I urge the Senators that are here today—I have done it with you
in Florida, I have done it with Senator Thurmond, in South Caroli-
na, a concerned father, who said, “I may be a Federal Senator, but
I raise my kids in the State of South Carolina. I am going to mauke
sure that South Carolina, and the Governor there and the legisla-
ture there know that I am concerned with the quality of my chil-
dren’s lives in this State, and I am going to go back into my State
and help you anywhere I can.”

In our State, we have passed about 25 laws. In Senator Thur-
mond’s State, he was the liaison to get me with Governor Riley ¢o
address the Joint Legislative Session. I urge the rest of the Sena-
tors here to go back to their States and put the pressure on. Some
of you were State legislators before you got here. That is where the
real changes can be.

Mandatory programs in schools. Shouldn’t all children learn how
to resist molesters and abductors? I asked the Florida legislature,
“How many of you daddies ever taught your children the rules of
protection—that they could say no, that they could resist the
schoolbus driver or the teacher? You are upper-middle-class; rnost
of you are lawyers. How many of you ever talk to your children?”

Ninety percent of the Florida legislature stood up and said they
did not do it. I said, “I make a case-in-point. It should be on the
curriculums of schools—all children—rich, poor, latchkey, black,
white, yellow, red—must learn in a nonthreatening, psychologically
approved program ir the school curriculum how to resist molesters
and abductors,” because ¢veryone talks about strangers, but 70 per-
cent of the people who molest children are someonc they know—
someone you may know. And our children need to know in their
schools. And how can we get that done? By mandate through State
legislation.

We certainly huve accomplished a lot of goals in the last 4 years
on the Federal level, but in some areas, I see we are back to square
1, we have accomplished nothing. Certain things have been accom-
plished with the private sector, and I know they are going to talk
about that today, but there are entire States that are not showing
pictures of missing children.

People may be laughing about it, but talk to any parent who has
had his child retrieved by pictures shown in “Adam” or pictures
shown on milk cartons. Talk to those children, or, better yet, talk
to a searching parent who is desperately holding that picture up,
trying to get it shown somewhere.

We can only show 60 pictures at a time in the airings of
“Adam”. There only can be so many pictures shown.

Yes, it should be done in the right way—and I know Jay will talk
about that-—but in some areas, in some States, we have accom-
plished very little, and we are back to square 1

So again, we need your help.

Senator Hawkins. Thank you, John. We appreciate your great

work.
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Senator Thurmond, President Pro Tem of the Senate, and Chair-
man of the Judiciary Committee has joined us. The Senator has
been managing the Defense bill on the Senate floor along with Sen-
ator Goldwater, and to show his keen interest he has joined us here
today despite his busy schedule. I thank him and all of the other
Senators—that is present this morning, as many Senators as I have
seen at a hearing in a long, long time.

Senator Thurmond, do you have a comment at this time?

Senator THURMOND. you very much, Madam Chairman,
and I will have to get back to the floor in just a minute.

I want to commend John and Reve Walsh for the great service
they are rendering to this country. There is nothing more impor-
tant than these children, and what you are doing, I just want to
say, is extremely important. And any way we can cooperate, I am
certainly glad to do it, and I feel the more contacts you can make,
the mcre good you are rendering, and the better we can get out
this m that you are advocating.

Madam Chairman, I want to commend you for holding this hear-
ing today. You have devoted much of your career in public service
to issues which affect the well-being of the children of our Nation. I
am proud to have worked with you in cosponsoring many impor-
tant pieces of leﬁialation in this area, including the Missing Chil-
dren’s Act and the Missing Children’s Assistance Act, which man-
dated the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children.

Every year thousands of children disappear from their homes,
never to be united with their loved ones. Today, there is a new
level of awareness and concern throughout our country regardin eg
this tragedy. We will hear testimony from several distinguish
witnesses concerning efforts in the public and private sectors to
locate these missing children.

I am particularly pleased to see that progress is being made in
the area of programs to prevent the disappearance of children. The
Texize Corp. of Greenville, S.C. has instituted such a praiseworthy
project.

oday I am delighted to welcome to this hearing Mr. Steve John-
son, senior product manager of the Terize Corp. who will testify.
Steve, his wife, Nancy, and his 18-month-old ughter, Caroline,
reside in Greenville, S.C, where the Texize Co. began in 1947,
Texize, which nationally markets various laundry and cleaning
products, employs 1,200 people in my home State and also has
plants in New Jersey and Illinois.

In cooperation with the Naticnal Center for Missing and Exploit-
ed Children and the National Crime Prevention Council, Texize
has initiated a program known as Operation Kidsafe. This program
has developed a safety phone directory and teaches children how to
use the telephonc to contact local police, doctors, and firefighters.
This handy directory also includes a quarter for a telephone call
and can be carried by the child at all times. This free directory also
teaches children important safety tips. The Operation Kidsafe Di-
rectory will be made available to 48 million households this
summer. Three weeks ago, Texize contributed $100,000 to the Na-
tional Council for Missing and Exploited Children. Additional
funds in excess of $200,000 will also be contributed by Texize to the
National Council.
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I want to commend Texize for this comprehensive prevention ,
program and for their generous contributions. Through such out- o
standing efforts by private citizens in cooperation with the public 3
sector, progress can and will be made to protect our greatest na- .
tional aseet, the children of our country.

Madam Chairman, thank you for allowing me to make this state- »
ment.eg once again vﬁelcome Mr. Johnson and th:hlzther distin- .
guished witnesses who are going to testify on this important :
matter. They are distinguished people, giving of their time and Y
m&ﬁ%’ scheduling confli hibit me fro fi

y, ing conflicts prohibit me from remaining for oA
the entire hearing on account of the Defense bill being up, but I N
look forward to reviewing the testimony of these fine witnesses. .

Thank you very much. i
Senator HAwxins. Thank you, Senator. We appreciate your in- A
terest, and Mrs. Thurmond’s activity. She has been an outstanding ;
partner in the National Partnership for Child Safety. '

Senator Grassley joined us earlier, and I know that Senator Dodd
and Senator Metzenbaum have conflicts. Senator Bradley has been
in and out because he is testifying st another hearing.

Senator GrassLEy. Madam Chairman, I have no statement, but I
would like to include one in the record, if I could do that.

Senator HAWKINs. Thank you. Withovt objection.

[The prepared statement of Senator Grassley and addit: snal in-
formation requestad follows:]
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STATEMENT OF SENATOR CHARLES E. GRASSLEY - May 23, . , SD-430
"Overview of Efforts to Locate Missing Children" ‘
v Tl
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MADAM CHAIRMAN, I WANT TO COMMEND YOU FOR YOUR UNTIRI EFFORTS
AND THE LEADERSHIP YOU HAVE SHOWN IN THE AREA OF MISSING
CHILDREN AND FOR HOLDING THIS HEARING TO FOCUS ON NOT ONLY

WHAT HAS BEEN DONE, BUT TO SEE WHAT NEEDS TO BE DONE TO LOCATE
3 MISSING CHILDREN.

IT IS A TRAGIC SITUATION INDEED, THAT EVERY YEAR 1.8 MILLION
CHILDREN IN THE UNITED STATES ARE REPORTED MISSING FROM THEIR
HOMES. MANY OF THESE CHILDREN AND RUMAWAYS OR “THROW AWAYS" .
SUFFEP AN 85% CHANCE OF BEING SEXUALLY VPCTIMIZED ON THE STREETS:
MANY END UP AS HOMICIDE VICTIMS. ADDITIONALLY, 25,000 to 500,000
CHILDREN ARE ABDUCTED BY PARENTS INVOLVED IN CUSTODY BATTLES.
LASTLY, BETWEEN 20,000 to 50,000 CHILDREN DISAPPEAR EACH YEAR

AND THEIR CASES REMAIN UNSOLVED BY THE END OF THE YEAR. INCLUDED
IN THIS GROUP ARE VICTIMS OF CRIMINAL ABDUCTION AND FOUL PLAY.

WHAT WE HAVE HERE IS A NATIONAL NIGHTMARE THAT STRIKES THOUSANDS
OF FAMILIES EACH YEAR. W3 CAN'T POSSIBLY KNOW THE UNTOLD
FRUSTRATION, PAIN AND ANGUISH THESE PARENTS ENDURE.

MADAM CHAIRMAN, IN MY OWN STATE THERE HAVE BEEN TWO PUBLICIZED
CASES OF CHILD ABDUCTION - THE DISAPPEARANCE OF EUGENE MARTIN
LAST YEAR AND OF JOHNNY GOSCH TWO YEARS AGO - BOTH TAKEN
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WHILE ZORKING THEIR PAPER ROUTES. SINCE JOHNNY'S DISAPPEARANCE

IN 1982, HIS PARENTS HAVE ORCHESTRATED A NATIONAL SEARCH. WHAT
THEY HAVE FOUND ARE CHILD AUCTION HOUSES, PORNOGRAPHIC STUDIOS

AND PROSTITUTION RINGS, ALL COGRDINATED TO A STARTLING DEGREE.

THEY DISCOVERED THESE THINGS THEMSELVES, FOR WHEN JOHNNi VANISHED,
VIRTUALLY WITHOUT COORDINATION WAS A FEDERAL SYSTEM OR LOCAL
ASSISTANCE TO LOCATE MISSING CHILDREN . POLICE AUTHORITIES WERE
FREQUENTLY RELUCTANT TO PURSUE CASES INVOLVING MISSING ?HILDREN,
BELIEVING INSTEAD THE MATTER CONCERNED A RUNAWAY OR SOME OTHER

DOMESTIC DISPUTE.

NOREEN GOSCH HAS BEEN AMONG THOSE PARENTS WHO HAVE GAINED WATIONAL
RECOGNITION IN THEIR FIGHT FOR THE RIGHTS OF MISSING CHILDREN, A
STRUGGLE THAT HAS HELPED EASE THE TRAUMA FOR OTHERS, AND I HAVE
ASKED THAT SHE SUBMIT WRITTEN TESTIMONY, SHARING WITH THE COMMITTEE
SPECIFIC OBSTACLES SHE FACED AND STILL FACES SECURING HELP TO FIND
HER SON. NCRIIN'S WORK AND FREOIENT APPEADANCES REEADE IEGISLATORS
HAS HELPED IN THE INSTITUTION OF TWO NEW FEDERAL PROGRAMS, THE
MISSING CHILDREN CLEARINGHOUSE AND THE MISSING CHILDREN'S CENTER,
BOTH OF WHICH I STRONGLY SUPPORTED. BEYOND COSPONSORING THOSE
MEASURES, I WORKED TO PASS FIRMER FEDERAL DETERRENTS ON CHILD
SNATCHERS AND CLOSING A LOOPHOLE IN THE LAK TO BAN NOT ONLY THE

SALE, BUT THE TRADING AND DISTRIBUTION OF CHILD PORNOGRAPHY.
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REFERRED TO AS THE CHILD PROTECTION ACT, THOSE STIFFENED CHILD :
PORNOGRAPHY LAWS ARE SAID TO HAVE RESULTED IN 63 Ci..MINAL INDICTMENS 3
IN THE LAST NINE MONTHS, AS MANY AS IN THE LAST SIX AND A HALF y
YEARS. g
ki
) e
BETTER STILL, THE RESULTING NUMBER OF CONVICTIONS HANDED DOWN '
i
AGAINST CHILD PORNOGRAPHERS, ACCORDING THE'. JUSTICE DEPARTMENT, ;
HAS NEARLY TRIPLED. %
b
. 8
BUT AS EFFECTIVE AS ALL THESE ACTIONS MAY BE, THE SEARCH FOR LAWS X
TO BETTER PROTECT QUR NATION'S YOUNG PEOPLE GOES ON. CONRESS MUST f§’
FIND EVEN TOUGHER LEGISLATION. THE PRUSLEM OF MISSING, CHILDREN 5
IS A NATIONAL PROBLEM, NOT ISOLATED INCIDENTS CONFINED TO ONE N
LOCALITY OR STATE. WE NBED COORDINATION AND COOPERATION BETWEEN -
THE STATES AND LOCAL COURT AND LAW ENFORCEMENT JURISDICTIONS. :
3
4
%
FEDERAL AND STATE EMFORCEMENT OFFICIALS NEED MORE TOOLS TO END K
THE OUTRAGE OF CHILD EXPLOTTATION, AND MORE IMPORTANTLY, YOUNG »
PEOPLE NEED ADDITIONAL PROTECTIONg .
THROUGH MY SEAT ON THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE, I HAVE INTRODUCED .
THE CHILD VICTIMS RIGHTS ACT, DESIGNED TO FURTHER CONGRESSIONAL
EFFORTS TO SAVE CHILDREN FROM THE HORRORS OF KIDNAPPING, MOLESTATION
AND PORNOGRAPHY.
i
o 29 !
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I AM GREATLY ENCOURAGED BY THE GROWING INITIATIVE TAKEN BY THE :
PRIVATE SECTOR IN ASSISTING EFFORTS TO LOCATE MISSING CHILDREN. :
MANY COMPANIES ARE DONATING SERVICES, MARKETING EXPERTISE, COMPUTERS, 1
AND POSTERS. QUALITY INNS INTERNATIONAL HAS IN EVERY ONE OF THEIR ‘
HOTEL LOBBIES, A DIRECT ACCESS LINE TO THE NATIONAL CENTER FOR “f-;
MISSING AND EXPLOITED CHILDREN. TRAILWAYS CORPORATION AND THE é‘j;
INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF POLICE ESTABLISHED ,\:;
"OPERATION HOME FREE" TO REUNITE RUNAWAY CHILDREN KITH THEIR \.‘:‘%
FAMILIES. . .j
. i

AND BASED-IN MY OWN STATE OF IOWA, COMMTRON CORPORATION AND VIDEO ] :‘;
SOFTWARE DEALERS FROM AROUND THE COUNTRY HAVE CONTRIBUTED THE %f;
FULL COSTS OF PRINTING THE NATIONAL CENTER FOR MISSING AND ;:»
EXPLOITED CHILDREN'S SELECTED STATE LEGISLATION: A GUIDE FOR R
EFFECTIVE STATE LAWS TO PROTECT CHILDREN. 2
AND IN DES MOINES, THE PERRY-AUSTEN BOWLING PRODUCTS IN COOPERATION A,g
WITH THE BOWLING PROPRIETORS' ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA DEVELOPED
A NONCOMMERCIAL PUSTER OF MISSING CHILDREN. THESE POSTERS WILL o
BE SEEN BY OVEF 13 MILLION PEOPLE WEEKLY WHO WILL VISIT BOWLING ;
CENTERS AROUND THE COUNTRY. 4
i

1 COMMEND THE EFFORTS OF THESE AND ALL OTHERS WHO ARE LENDING R
A HAND. :

30
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LASTLY, 1 WANT TO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT TODAY IN IOWA, GOVERNOR
BRANSTAD IS SIGNING A CHILD PROTECT.ON PACKAGE, CONSISTING OF

12 PIECES OF LEGISLATION. INCLUDED IN THAT PACKAGE IS A MEASURE
WHICH ESTABLISHES A STATE MISSING CHILDREN'S CLEARINGHOUSE

WHICH WILL COORDINATE EFFORTS IN FINDING MISSING CHILDREN. 1IN
ADDITION TO WORKING CLOSELY WiTH THE NATIONAL CENTER FOR
MISSING AND EXPLOITED CHILDREN, THEY WILL ISSUE BULLETINS,
NOTIFY MEDIA OF CHILDREN MISSING, AND ESTABLISH EDUCATIONAL
PROGRAMS.

MADAM CHAIRMAN, I AM ENCOURAGED BY THE FIND PANEL OF WITNESSES
GA/HERED HERE TODAY, AND LOOK FORWARD TO HEARING WHAT OTHER
LEGISLATIVE INITIATIVES COULD BE PURSUED.
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attached you will find signed statements from neighbors 1i only a few
doora from our home, who have never been contacted by 1law enforcement.
Which does constitute the basis of a good investigation. Also enclosed
you will find a statement from a woman who, was in the police department
and witnessed a lead come in on our son and the officer said "ic is pro-
bably nothing” and discarded it without checking it out. This took place
very early in the case. In October 1982, we received a ransom demand,

and the FBI refused that night to work on it until we threatened them
with a civil law suit personallg. if our son was killed that evening due
to their negligence. They did however finally decide to work on that ranson
demand, and waited long past the appointed time of the "money drop time"
during the time frame...... the peraon who telephoned us to tell us where
to pick up the ransom note, called a second time and said "TIME IS UP -
YOU WAITED TOO LONG". Both phone calls were tape recorded and we have our
copies to prove the existence of this lead. In our terms, law enforcement

29 .
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HELP FIND JOHNNY GOSCH, INC. ,;

Box 65332 k

West Des Moines, lowa 50265 ‘

515-244-9181 i

May 29, 1985 o~

THE KIDNAPPING OF JOHNNY GOSCH - ©/5/82 - Since the kidnapping of our :‘3
son, we hive been forced to conduct our own investigation. Since the .3
law enforcement rafused to take seriously the safety of our son. We have -
literally tried to move mountains to recover him. To finance the gearch = 1
we have had to seil candy bara, buttons, bumper stickers and do garage it
sales. To further prove the negligent action on the part of law enforcement R

"BOTCHED " our son's case and have spent the remainder of the time trying :
to cover their mistakes, because we have brou%ht: out every bit of their o
negligence in the press. It is our son an2 i

no one else is willing to he?
look for him, his parents do care and wsnt him back. .
We have requested a meeting with the Vice President to go over the evidence :
in ovr case. It is a case which has set precidents. L

We feel our son's case is the work of an organized group, we have included ¢
a copy of the NAMBLA BULLETIN, in which they warn all of their members 3
not to sutmit to questioning on the Johnny Gosch case. Due to certain o
information we have able to get we feel certain children are being bought !
and sold in this country. Our detectives were able to get into an auction ’
of children, held in two cities in the south. What kind of country do we k
live in ..... if our children can be snatched off the streets and law en-
forcement can just turn their backs on the children and their parents as -
they did in sur case. We did what we had to in order to keep the search *
for our child alive, and we encourage any other parent to do the same thing.

No one is going to search for that child, if the parent does not insist.

The case of Adam Walsh is a tragic story which occurs far too often, but

our case depicts the long term, indefinite time period which a parent must

search and endure. The stresses which accompany this are not the same as .
the cases in whichk a body is found relatively soon. The ending is tragic ;
and the child is the victim, but in the ongoing search there is devastatio

emotionally, financially and every other way which affects living. Because

we are living in LIMBO!I1!11}
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JUDICIAL DEATH OR PRESUMPTION OF DEATH - In many states parents of a
¢ missing person, must have that person declared dead after a given period
of time to proceed with legal matters. This time period varies from state
to state. Included is the Statute for Iowa, it only pertains to missing
servicemen etc. And yet when we went intc get our income tax figured, »
the accountant said "We may not be able to take a deduction for Johnny,
due £o the fact he no longer lives at home and he could be dead". If
N we have no statute for Iowa, where and how can they make a statement
such as this to searching parents. We are already spending almost every-
thing we make to try and find him, doing an investigation, which law en-
forcement should have done...... we pay enough taxes for protection and .
are not receiving it. What are parents such as us to do??72??? R
A) Go through the rest of our lives with out knowing? 5
B) Wait until the agpropriate time span - then declare our childran
dead and have a funeral?
C) Should we go ahead with a funeral now????? That would get everyone
off the hook, no one would have to look for our son any longerili!

?
.y
NS

If these sound like angry statements, they are..... our son was KIDNAPPED
AND KIDNAPPING IS AGAINST THE LAW. AND STILL WE HAVE TO BEG, PLEAD AND
FINALLY FIGHT FOR WHAT IS FAIR FOR OUR CHILD AND EVERY OTHER MISSING
CHILD IN TERMS OF FOLLOW UP BY LAW ENFORCEMENT.

We raise these questions because not until parents begin to rally will

we have effective follow up on our cases. We now have the NATIONAL CENTER
FOR MISSING CHILDREN AND THE NEXT SECTION WILL BE INVOLVING THEIR PROTOCOL.
WE HAVE A GREAT MANY QUESTIONS, WHICH NEED TO BE ANSWERED.

NATIONAL CENTER FOR MISSING CHILDREN - “THE LAST HOPE ON THE HILL" 1111
ow can the National Center decide to Xavor one c over others
in publicity, as they did the night Adam was aired for the third time.
They decided thcir protocol as it was explained to everyone by John
Rabun, then deliberately changed their protocol to favor one child from
John's home town. Johnny is still missing, if it were not for our per-
sistence and determination in this matter, the lid would still be on
the missing childrens issue. A great many parents have given of time
and energy to make this issue newsworthy, John snd Revee Walsh certainly
have contributed, theg did not have the continuing stress of a search
as we have and many other parents like us. Resorting to selling candy
bars was a good human interest story at first, but it awakened parents
all over the country. That parents had to sell chicolate to ever hope
to find their child in this country. HOW APPALLING.

T N AT

LA s

2) LEADS/SIGHTINGS on children. Jim Scutt of the Nat.o".al Center reported
some two dozen sightings on our son, these were gi.en to law enforcement
We already know how they mishandled our investis:cion and we have never
received any word as to where the sightings were, how they were handled
or if they were handled. The National Centur douns not have any follow
up with these police departments, and the Center will not share leads
with parents. THAT IN IT SELF IS CRIMINAL..... (T IS STILL OUR CHILD!
We are beginning to question if the leads are being sent out to law
enforcement at all.

3) WHO IS ACTUALLY LOOKING FOR CHILDREN??27? All of the search agencies
simplz act as a publicity house for children's pictures the{ are not
searching for children. Yet they mislead families into thinking some-
one is actually looking for that child. The National Center represents
THE LAST HOPE ON THE HILL FOR MANY PARENTS SEARCHING FOR THEIR CHILDREN.
It is sad indeed that all things in the name of children are not treated
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3) WHC IS ACTUALLY LOOKING FOR CHILDREN??? (CONT.)
with the priority and dignity they deserve. Who researched the agencies
listed by the National Center for their "WNO TO TURN TO LIST"? The
recovery of missing children is largely parental sbductions, this
constitutes success stories, and yes these children deserve to be found
too, but many times they are not in a dangerous situation. Some do
neet with death due to the parents who mistreat their children. We
have & new law in Iowa to provide for immediate investigation when a
child is missing and yet on 5/29/85, we were contacted by a mother
right here in our city who has two children taken by their father
the mother has custody and the police will do nothing to assist her.
Another parent shoved off in a corner to wait. When Johnny was kidnappe:
1 and we could get no assistance from authorities I called the Juvenille
Justice Dept. and spoke with Jay Howell and when I pleaded for help
he replied "YOUR CHILD WOULD HAVE BEEN BETTER OFF IF HE HAD BEEN KID-
NAPPED BEFORE HE WAS TEN YEARS OLD". It was a cruel thing to say to
a parent but it did depict how unimportant children over ten years old
are in this country. It is up to the parents to prove their child is
in danger. We are still having problems getting tha police to respond
even with all of the publicity agout: missing children and especially
our case. Enclosed are several clippings of how the police reacted
upon a few leads. And now there is a refusal by the police or the
NATIONAL CENTER FOR MISSING CHILDREN to allow ua information on our
own son. There is no follow up system with the National Center - they
are not designed for this, however in the case of a police department
that can't or won't do the job we need other provisions. My husband
and I would like to know......"WHEN DID THE WEST DES MOINES POLICE
AND THE NATIONAL CENTER FOR MISSING CHILDREN BECOME JOHNNY GOSCH'S
LEGAL GUARDIAN"222? This is the same police department that refused
- to respond when our son was kidnapped.

TASK FORCE

We have the need for a specially trsined task force in this country
which could dispatch personnel to individual police departments when
this cyﬁe of crime takes place. They would work with the police in
doing the proper type of investigation. Most police departments by
their own admission ..... do not know how to deal with these crimes.
They do not have the material they need to s “7e them or to understand
the profile of a pedophile nor the massive organized effort in this
country to abduct children for various purposes. The police need to
be educated as well as the rest of the public. No longer do we need
the “EGO PROBLEMS OR TURF BATTLES" - we encountered this problem and
so do most other parents. ThHe money could be appropriated for such
a project. The country seems to raise the money for every other type
of aid to other countries, what about the children who are being taaen
from their families. We did not bring our children into the world to
be kidnapped for someone's sexual perversion and then have the system
turn their backs when we asked for help. We are law abiding tax payers
and this really makes us question the overall priority structure of
tiis country. Our son was special to us as is every child to their
garent. How dare this country allow the destruction of our children
not having any type of system to deal with this massi ‘lefprobl Me
e participated in a documentary for Japan, the producer o the film
asked us "WHY DOES YOUR COUNTRY ALLOW CHILDREN TO BE USED IN THIS MANMER
AND THE PARENTS HAVE TO DO THE WORK OF THE POLICE DEPARTMENTS"? We
did not know how to answer them .... the rest of the world fs in turmoi:

but we in this country are being observed on this situation.

ERIC '35

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

P o T R

EAE .

EXNORTL

<o dv KT,

7
&R 3
Ak ¥ o, o™

ry



THE PERSONAL PAGE -
At first I was not going to include this topic but later decided we must

LAWY

enter this area as well in this tragedy. The families that are being des- P
troyed by this tragedy. The divorce rate is so high, chewical dependency, ks
and suicide..... why because of the loss, the not knowing, the trying to <)
cope on the job, trying to pay for investigations. There i8 not one bit 5’
of help for these parents, including us. We are told, we do not ever s
qualify for any victim's funds anywhere. We are told "THERE IS NG CRIME A
ONLY A MISSING CHILD”. (THAT ONE IS A FAVORITE OF THE FBI) -

'
The strange phenomenon in a great many cases is that generally fathers ~’§
in the families - turn against one of the other children because the X

one child has been kidnapped. We have researched this with a great many
families and talked with experts who spend 90Z of their time working with
families of victims in these cases.

AN
RO e

In our own case, it has happened. Fortunately our children are older

but my husband has turned against our other son. At & time when the family
must pull together, it is being torn apart. It has been personally very
difficult for me as a mwother t7 continue each day tr{in to keep the search
going for Johnny and overcome all of the obstacles which have been delib-
erately placed before me by local, state and federal law enforcement.

Our son means the world to us, but we have no family any longer. wWith

el Ay iy Y St Y

«

4) Alcohol or drugs- yes many parents resort to this to ease the pain -
one big problem - over a period of time it requires ore and more to
relieve the pain.... then you are hooked and the search for the child
is over.

5) Suicide - This {s common too. You feel desperation, no one is looking,
you may go through the rest of your life and not know, or you can
imagine in your mind what some animal is doing to your child. Some
molestor or killer that our system has either let go on parole or
never sentenced due to a technicality in the trial. after a while of

hinking like this and feeling the pain, death sounds inviting - some

t
do it.

In our situation, I constantly look at Johnny's picture and txy to always
realize he is the victim and no matter how badly we feel, it can't compare
to his pain. And we can't quit...... MY GOD, HE COULD BE ALIVE SOMEWHERE
AND WE MIGHT BE ABLE TO RESCUE HIM. All of these thoughts and more are
in the life of a parenr daily when your child is missing. Some officials
do not care, especially if it is not their child. And we have found some
who have given very kindly of their time and energy to help us in any way
possible. This is a big proplem in this country, we can't forget this
aspect, the dying family because of this tragedy. e have had a number

the resentment turned inward toward another member of the family, there 8
is absolutcly no type of family life or special occasion which is not *{
an absolute horror to endure. Y
What are the options???? o
1) Counseling - excellent - however most of the counselors do not R
have any cxperience in dealing with this specialty kind of case. ‘;5{
2) Paying for it. There is no insurance policy, no type of assistance K4
to cover this as yet. And we have families going down the tube .very -
day. Everyone in a family hurts when a member is taken. We know “
wﬁ are living it day by day. It kills you a little each day with 3
the pain. *
3) Divorce????? Yes many do that because they can no longer cope. ) m,:
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of repoiters as well as Universities which have schools of Psychology
ask us how we are coping and overcomming this set of problems which .
face parents? What are we doing different to be able to combine, the 3
search, fund-raising to keep it going, our jobs, legislation work and
finally the abduction awareness programs we are doing so far a total
of 370 since our son was kidnappcd. Perhaps we will just not give
up on one vevy special young man, our son Johnny.

1 submit this material, in hopes some of the problems can be investigated {,‘_’
and workeu out of the system. We have worked hard and will continue 5
but the problem is growing in molestation and kidnapping and murder of Y
our children. 3
We remain .... ¢

“IN DEFENSE OF CHILDREN"
v Yootts

JOHN AND NOREEN GOSCH

1004 45th St.

W. Des Moines, lowa 50265

PH: 515-225- 7456 Home
515-225 2527 Office

>

a0

Sram

o G T

38 Ay v

[ A

b3t

ol

s Al

s

ERIC 37

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




v T
e

34

Gosch family pressure police
fo search at sife near Indianola

By FRANX SANTIAGO
Restotor Stoll Writer

John and Noreen Gosch said Tweo-
day they want police (o search a site
southeast of Indiencla to determine
whether their missing son, Johnny, is
buried there.

It awthorities refuse to do so, No-
reen Gosch said, she may lead a party
there and dig in the area herself.

The area was described in an anony-
mous letter, sent to The Deg Moines
Re;ist;‘rm recently, which ;e“lfted a
story about an elderly man killed
anewspaper carrier and burfed him in
ashallow grave, Police said they knew
who wrote the account and declared it
was a hoax.

The letter didn’t mention Gosch by
name bat the circumstances described
in it resembled those that surrounded
tt;eémpter'tdhappunnce&pt.s.
1 .

“I think they should do everything
they can to sve what's there, including

Don Martin, father of missing news-
paper ‘arrier Eugene Martin, also
urged « search saying, “There’s no
reason it l'!louldn't be checked out

West Des Moines Police Lt. Lyle
McKinney repeated an earlier state-
ment and said there won't be a search.

“With the information we have right
now we have no reason to look,” he
said. McKinney had described the let-
ter writer as emotionally disturbed
and said therc: was little truth in the
account.

“Currently, the matter is closed,”
McKinney said. He said police won't
disclose the lc~ation “because it's pri-
vate property.”

Goech said she rray obtain the land-
owner's permission to conduct a
search.

|
|
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“We don't want to leave anything

” undone,” she said. “This is another ex- .

Gosch said she has sigeed docu-
meats from four neighbors who say
that police dldn’t interview them
skortly after Johnay Gosch disap-
peared.

“You ask yourself how complete is
the investigation when you find that
they didn't talk to people who live
:i.d.r where Johnny disappeared,” she
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February 2, 1964

Sharyl McCarty
3805 SW luth St.
Des Moinss, Is.
50315

To whom it may concern:

This is s personsl statement to verify that on 12-10-62 Sharyl McCarty
was wvitness to an exchange of information concsrning Johnny Gosch, that was
never forvarded to the family.

.Ch 12-10-82 I was filing s polics report, case #82-3984, time 1:zOpm.
Some ninutes before a call cams into the station. The female officer was alome
and wrote the messsge dova. Soom amother policesian eatered ss to he just ’
coning on duty. The dispatcher sadd, *This call cams from Mew York. A man
18 claining to have information sbort Johnmy Gosch, Should we pasa the
infornation on3" The male officer respondad, shaking his head, *No it's
prebably nothing.*

In spesking with the Gosch faridly, ths report was never forvsrded.

I hareby verify that sll the iaformation §s trwe and correst to the
best of wy knoylsge, and will be svuilable for testimony if need ba,
A)

State of Iowa, Polk County. On this 22d of February 1984, personaly sppeared

Sharyl K. McCarty,
Carolyns ﬂ:pcr E

Expirss: 6-22-86
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GIBERG JEWAERS

No wonaer peopie aepend on us.

5-3-85

To Whom It May Concern;

In regard to the disappearance of Johnny Gosh, as of this
date I have not been contacted by any law enforcement aganoy
or local police. The only geople who have contacted me

have been as follows; John & Noreen Gosch, their private
deSettives, ABC news and a reporter from a Chicago
newspgper,

Please be aware the importance of this is that I 1live
directly accross the street from John & Noreen, Johnny
88 well as his parents 1s a close friend and my backyard

ic adjacent to property whare the nhewspapers were dropped
off for pick-up.

Susan Ginsber ¢
&bcu
~ ln
- o

+1009 45 st, ﬁ/\/x N
West Des Moines, Iowa 50265

106-B Valley West Mall  ~  West Des Moines, lowa 50265 - (515) 223-0833
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May 5, 1965
REs JOHNNY GOSCH

Shortly after Johnny disappeared one of the Gosch's
private detectives stopped by our home to ask questions about
Johnny, In the last couple of months Harry Braafhart, Safety
Manager of The Des Moines Register has heen to our home to
question me persconally about Johnny's disappearance,

Detective Rushing from the West Des Moines Police
Department did make a phone call to our home and asked for
permission to speak to our youngest daughter, Jeanne, in
regards to her possibly being able to identify Johnny's
paper sack, as she did sub for him on occassion,

At no time have I, my husband or children, been
questioned by any law enforcement agency, FBI, DCI or the
West Des Moines Police, in regards to Johnny's disappearence,

Shern. WsSrgamlieon)
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Gerry Ardhambeau
1012 45th Street
West Des Moines, Iowa 50265
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JOHN GOSCH - PHUNE HOME:

NAUBLA 1us  recoved am  Inquisy
' regirding the wheresbouls of ¢ eisning
lowa youth,  John  Caxch, whoty
disappasrance has genereled considartila
aedis sttantion, John s o 13- y"r old
youth of West O8 M wha
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gﬂﬂ PAILUZ TO PCLIOY INSTRUCTIONS MAS ONLY DELAYED & °¥ILL®
PRRKINASTLY FREVENT THE REUNION OF THE KID WITH HIS PAMILY
SINCE EARLY SUNDAY KuRNING YUU'VE GONVINCED US L0V

DONT MIND OANUBLING WITH THE KIDS LIPE SO IT? APPRARS THAT XOU
NEED CGNVINCInS THAT WE'RE NOT BLUPPIAG, SINCE YOU SEEX TO HAVE
MCRE PAITH IN THE FOLICE TMAN THE INSTRUCTIONS wR GIVE, ALL YOU

NEZD DO IS PUCK THIS UP THIS TIME & WE WILL GLADLY SEND YOU

FUSTAQE PREE THE KID'S RIGHT. hAND & EAR 20 PROVE OUR POINT. AAY
INTERPERZNCE RESARLLESS UP WHO PAULT IT IS WR wiLlL PROCEED TU #Ra

OVa VE MBAN DUSINESE. THIS IS THE PINAL OFFORTUNITY YOU ASS HOLES
WILL HAVE 70 COMILY WUTH THZ DEMANDS

YOU wWILL m .20.0.0. u ANOTHER PAFER BAG, GO EAST ON
DN!VERSITY 1‘0 13TH
1;7}( NORTF A"ROSS POREST 4 BLOCK, ON THE RIGHT
YOU wILL SE.. A ZLLCW PIKS FLUS N2XT 20 A BUSS STOP

THROW BAG OP UE",A’G ZRED YONEY OUT NEZXT TO PIR2 PLUG &
RETURN HOKE POR THE KOX The K1

YOUR KUVEMENTS ARZ BEING MONITORED:AND THERE WILL BE
te::OLUTLY Nu BXCEPTION IF THE INSTRUCTIONS ARE LEVIATED WA? §0

BEPORE THE CALL THE MON:Y, WILL BE CHECKER POR FLAWS OF
ANY TYPE ( PROVIDING THERE ARN‘T ANY, OR ANY OTHER SMAR? INTRAPS
YEN1S) l'nE KID WILL FHONE YOU WHERE T0 PICK MINM UP UNHAAMED

QULD YOU NOT COMFLY IN ANY WAY, CHR MAND & EAR WILL bR
QUR PSKLL’:IISS‘OI T0 YOU

THE CHOICE IS YOURS MR. GOSCH
PUT YOUR PAITH IN THESE INSTRUCTIONS & YOUR NONEY, BZLEIVE It
OR NOT LAW ENFORCERS CAN ONLY GAUSE YOU GRIZP DIPPICULT 20 ERASE
FRON YOUR WDAORY( OR KAVENT TEY ALAPADY PROTEN 21t 7)

VERY PORKILUE WITH SCANNERS JaneanG evices
DNSEING & FTC, MOT 20 m?;ou PHE OSKLESS $AP'OK -YOUR PHONE

GIVE THE MRS, THE KID'S LOVE: NE MISSES HER

*123 YOUR CHOICE MR, GOSCH® HOPE YOU'RE
NOT DUMB ENOUGH TO MAKE THE WRONG ONE TMIS TINE

2 SXES IS OUR'PINAL ATTENP TO REASNN®
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Senator HAwkiNs. Senator Dodd, I welcome you.

Senator Dopp. Thank you, Madam Chair. I thank you for what
you have done for these hearings over the years, and the Walshes,
of course, have brought to the attention of millions of people what
would otherwise have been the subjecv of occasional hearings in
Congress. It takes that kind of public awareness tefore we begin to
see some things happening. It is frustrating to watch State legisla-
tures not move as quickly as they would like; it i3 frustrating to see
the Congress not move as quickly as we would like.

But I think we are moving, at least in this front here, well, and I
suspect you are going to see the kind of action at the State level.

This morning, we will hear from our attorney general in the
State of Connecticut. There, in fact, the bill }ast year we did on the
trust fund idea for the preventive programs either has passed the
State legislature in Connecticut, or is about to, among other things. .
So I think an awful lot of good things are ha pening.

This morninf, the ADVO Systems Corp. of Connecticut, which is
the largest bulk mailer in the couniry outside of the U.S. Postal
Service, starts tomorrow with all their bulk mail each week will
have a different missing child on the envelopes. That is 40 to 50
million houscholds a week that they will be reaching. That kind of
activity plus what has been mentioned here by other group as well
is, I think, the kind of activity that I think is going to make a very
profound and positive contribution. We can legislate and legislate
and legislate and get other people, average people aware,.and you
really begin to get that dynamic taking over. We can draw all the
parameters as tightly as we want, and I think you still find the
frustration of not having the kind of public awareness, the educa-
tional programs that, as both of you know, painfully, Adam did,
and that the ADVO System will contribute to. And that is really
when things begin to happen, at least, it seems to me it does.

Madam Chair, I have a statement I will just submit for the
record, an opening statement, and thank you egain for these hear-
ings. I thank the Walshes for what they have done— eloquent testi-
mony, Mr. Walsh, this morning.

Maybe we can get you to cone to Connecticut if we are not suc-
cessfu! this summer—as we should be. I think mest of our bills will
be up iz June and July. But if for any reason, we run into any
problems, you are going to get a hotline call.

Mr. WaLsk. I look forward to it. I have met with your attorney
gereral. I think he was one of the most proactive back a while, but
I think he learned a lesson. He sent cut a letter to all law enforce-
ment in the Sta’2 of Connecticut saying, “I wish you would use the
NCIC.” I know for a fact that some of those law enforcement agen-
cies took the letter and made paper sirplanes out of it. I :im a great
believer in the mandating of the legislation. But he is one of the
better attorneys general in this country, and has done an awful lot
of proactive things in your State. But I would ook forward to it.
That is what we are doing most of our time now, is testifying State
to State, trying to get States to react to the problem.

Senator Dopp. Well we do not anticipate any difficuities, but I
am going to watch it very closely, and if I suspect there are anv,
we will get ahold of you.

Mr. WaLsH. Thank you. We avpreciate it.
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Senator HAWKINS. Senator Metzenbaum.

Senator Dopp. Thank you, Madam Chair.

Senator METZENBAUM. Madam Chairman, I congratulate you on
your leadership in this area, but you, Mr. Walsh and Mrs. Walsh, I
think you are proof-positive that, coming out of your own personal
tragedy, you have proven beyond a shadow of a doubt what one
person can do, and what a impact you can have upon Government
as well as the private sector, on an issue that did not have a high
profile, probably should have, prior to your loss of your Adam, has
now become a national issue, and one in which I found as recently
as yesterday the kind of response that there is.

I have been in the Senate 11 yea:s. Getting a bill through the
Senate is not exactly the easiest thing, because there are lots of
roadblocks. And yesterday at a hearing, as Mr. Howell knows, I
mentioned the fact that I thought that we ought to have legislation
which would provide that 75 percent of all congressional mail
would contain a picture of a missing child—this is a little girl from
Cleveland—as well as lLiographical information coxcerning that
child, and that 50 percent of all Government mail ought to carry
that kind of information.

Senator Hawkins was cosponsor with me of the legislation. And
every Senator with whom I spoke agreed to become a cosponsor. 1
then took it up and indicated to the leadership of the Senate that I
wanted to introduce it and pass it by today.

I am happy to tell you—you probably know already—that we
passed it within 2 hours after it was introduced, which may set
some kind of a record here in the U.S. Senate.

And as a consequence, if we can move it through the House—
which I am trying to do, and I think I may be running into some
roadblock there, but I am going to try to clear that away this
morning—I would hope that we can enact this legislation prior to
National Missing Children’s Day, which is Saturday. And I cannot
think of any more appropriate way for the President to indicate his
support than by signing it into law on Saturday.

I think that we in ilie Government have an equal responsibility,
if not a greater -esponcibility, inan the private sector—and the pri-
vate sector has been pitching in.

I do not know whether the State of Chio has as yet acted on this
subject. I¥ they have not—have they?

Mr. WaLsd. Yes. They have been one of the best.

Senator METZENBAUM. All right. Because I was prepared to call
1che Governor, Lt if they are on target, great. I am proud of that
1'ct.

Mr. WaLsa We iud the first Adam Walsh Center outside of Floz-
idu started in Ohio, and Governor Celeste and I signed a 45-page
Children’s Bill just before the session ended in Ohio.

So you can be proud of your State.

Senator METZENBAUM. I could not be more proud. Thank you. I
am happy about that. And I want you to feel free to call upon me,
but I would guess I speak for 99 other Senators as well. We are
concerned, and we want to do what we can. Do not hesitate to ask.

Mr. WaLsn Weil, I appreciabe that, Senator. I remember back 3
years ago when “Adam” aired for the first time, and you were the
first Senator to call the Adam Walsh Center outside of our involve-
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ment with Senator Hawkins and Senator Thurmond at that time,
to say, “What can I do as & Senator?” I have never forgotten that,
and I appreciate it.

Unfortunately, today, I am actually preaching to the choir. There
are a lot of Senators here that are concerned with this issue and
have been involved. As you know, we do have the Chilcren’s Jus-
tice Act now, that Senator Hawkins introduced and you are cospon-
sor of, which would allocate matching funds for progressive and
groactive States that have passed pro-active legislation for chil-

ren. I think it is an excellent piece of legislation because it is that
“carrot” out there to the States to say, “If you have a Missing Chil-
dren’s Clearinghouse, or if you have multidisciplinary teams, or
you have training of golice and social workers and district attor-
neys, we will match the funds. We will give your children in that
State a better shake.” And I think it is a good piece of legislation. I
hope that you will be able to do what you have done with your col-
leagues with the pictures on the mail and go back to them and say,
“We have got one more bill to dea: with, and that is the Children's
Justice Act.”

So again, I am preaching to the choir. I personally appreciate
Your support and the people on this pansl, because you have been
ong-time advocates. Some Congressmen are coming onboard now—
better late than never—but this crew right here has been there
from the beginning, basically.

HSenﬁtor MerzenBAUM. We are next going to hear from Jay
owell.

John, I am wendering whether or not you would like to take the
time and sacrifice the opportunity to hear Jay Howell—and I
would do the same—and if you would care to walk with me over to
tl}:fs Il-)Itﬁu;e of Representatives and see if we can expedite passage of
this bill,

Mr. WaLsnu. I would be glad to.

Senator MerzenBauM. We will do it.

Senator HAWKINS. As you know, this type of action speaks louder
than words Senator. John and I tried this method in 1981 when we
successfully worked to push the act through the House of Repre-
sentatives. It is a hard group to push.

Thank you so much. The Wafahes are a great family, with two
wonderful children who are going to have a better future because
of their parents’ activity and involvement and deep commitment,
and they speak for parents with safe children as well as parents at
risk, who may not have as much strength as the Walshes have
been blessed with.

Our next Fanel will consist of Jay Howell, executive directo. of
the National Center on Missing and Exploited Children, accom} a-
nied by Donna Owens, who is the mayor of Toledo, Ohio, and who
is Chairman of the Nativnal Missing Children’s Advisory Board,
and Joe Lieberman, attorney general of Connecticut.

Welcome.

Jay, we will call on you first, one of our band of pioneers. We
commend you for your great work, and it has been great to work
with you. We are very proud of our Florida connection, and your
continued devotion to a subject that we think is “motherhood and
app:. pie”, but as you and I have talked over the weeks, we have
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run into a lot of obstacles. I am glad you are with us, on the right
side, and I commend you for a fantastic success record since you
came o the Federal government.

STATEMENT OF JAY HOWELL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
CENTER ON MISSING AND EXPLOITED CHILDREN; HON. DONNA
OWENS, MAYOR, TOLEDO, OH, AND CHAIRMAN, MISSING CHIL-
DREN'S ADVISORY BOARD; AND JOE LIEBERMAN, ATTORNEY

1 GENERAL, STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Mr. HoweLL. Thank you, Senator.

As you know, I think the climate is substantially different than 4
years ago when we started to look at this agg'ressively at the Feder-
al level, and I think the fruit of your leadership is being seen all
over the United States now, in good ways, and I think it is nice to
have that kind of pertnership that we see now, ard the kind of con-
cern that has been coming forward has been a long time in coring.

There are two things that I wanted to mention today. I have sub-
mitted written testimony for the record, but there are two things I
wanted to inention that maybe will help us clear the air and move
this issue forward.

We have seen some problems on this issue along with the good
intentions of so many, of the awareness items about the vulnerabil-
ity of children. I think that one thing that has got to be discussed
is the private sector, because I think that is the greatest hope for
the future, and I think that we have seen a variety of impacts in
that area. Some of them are very unique. They range from organi-
zations like the National Education Association, that has stepped -
forward to assist us with financial resources; the folks who distrib- :
uted Henry Winkler's “Safe Kids, Strong Kids” tape, who helped i
provide the resources to print free our State legislation book.

We even have a restaurant, an individual restaurant, in Detroit
that recently stepped forward, and I think we have got now major
corporations like the folks at the Bekins Van Lines Co. and Dole,
and others, who are stepping forward to help us in a meaningful
way.

Today, we have got the great folks at Texize here to testify, who
stepped forward in the most meaningful way you can step forward,
and 2 weeks ago, gave us a check for $100,000, as Senator Thur-
mond mentioned. That is the kind of progress that will enable us to
reduce child victimization in this country.

They are not alone. I think next Tuesday, I am going to go to a

high school out in the Detroit area where the students of that high
school, aware of a couple of disappearances in that area, have
raised over $10,000 on their own to aid in these kinds of efforts.
And that is the kind of team that I thiak is being put together
now, and it is important to recognize them, and it is important to
recognize the folks like Mr. Johnson and the great folks at Texize,
and the folks at Mobil, who have done their own unique type of
contribution, and we need to encourage more of those types of ap-
proaches.

I do think there is some agreement among the issues that we
need to clear the air. One of the things that we need to clear the
air on is factual information and misinformation. Unfortunately,

o3 L




oy

50

this issue has been plagued from day one by information supplied
by people who do not know what they are talking about. I think
that hurts the issue in some ways. I have prerared a written sum-
mary of factual information, which I will submit for the record,
that does indicate some of the things that we know about this
issue.

One of the problems that we have is what are we going to do
with this. We are concerned that the issue not be exploited or
taken in a cavalier manner. It will hurt children’s issues.

This is a good example of what we arc talking about—and this
may have been a well-intentioneq effort; it may have been a very
well-intentioned effort. It is a picture of a missing child on a bottle
of wine. And I think that yesterday, the National Center turned
down for the first time certain types of vehicles for the display of

missing children pictures that are not appropriate. I think if the .

individual private sector corporations around the United States
want to help children, then they are gcing to have to get beyond
putting them on a wine bottle.

Senator HAWKINS. Did they have to have permission to do that?

Mr. HowetL. No, if they go to us to do it, and we carefully regu-
late it and use a written format that tells us where the pictures are
going and what is going to be used. But I think we have got to be
careful about this, because every vehicle is not the appropriate ve-
hicle for the display of a picture of a missing child. Who was the
first person to tell us that? Julie Puiz I spoke to her about that
this weeken”. And Julie’s feeling is shared by those of us at the
National Center, and that is, if you want to help children, we can
tell you how to do it, but it may not be that way. It may not be
putting pictures of missing children on chicken parts, or bottles of
wine. I think it is something we need to be careful about in order
to protect the integrity of this great concern for children.

The other thing I wanted to mention is this. I think that children
are, as evidenced by the kids at the high school in Detroit, are very
concerned about this issue, children to children. We put out all of
the information that John talked about in regard to State legisla-
tion to protect children, and we get interesting letters from kids
around the United States about this, and they are very insightful.

One child, a 10-year-old fourth-grader in Georgia, must have seen
one of these publications, because he wrote us a l:tter that said,

Dear State Legislation, My class and I at Esther Jackson Elementary have been
wanting to tell you to change the laws about child abuse, 8o I wrote a letter, telling
you to put the abusers in jail for longer, like five to fifteen yeurs, or mayl.e up to all
their life. You might want to think .hat after three years, that is all they need, but
they would do it all over again. Remember, you were once « kid, and when you first

heard about child ab.se, you did no’ want to be abused or kidnapped, so please
change the law. Your friend, Kyle Kram®, Age 10, Grade 4, Roswell, Georgia.

So I sent Kyle a whole box of information about State legislation
and protection information and told him to take it to school and
sce what happened. And about 3 weeks later, I got 80 letters from
all the other children in the class and the teacher, and they were
very interesting in what they had to say about the children.

Some of them said things iike if this kind of crime—child victim-
ization, abuse, kidnapping—was happening to adults, something
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would have been done about it a long time ago. These are 9-
10-year-old children with these kinds of ideas,

The teacher had a letter in there that said, “You know, I sm a
little ashamed of one thing, and that is the fact that the firgt letter
you received on this was not from a parent, but was from a child.”

And at the bottom of the pile of letters was a letter from one
young man that said, “Dear Jay, My name is Kyle Kramb. Remem-
ber me? I am the guy that wrote you the letter and asked you for
all the information. You sent it to me, and I took it to school, and
now I don’t have any; please, send me some more.”

I think it is indicative of where we are going on the issue, and I
salute your leadership, Senator Dodd’s leadership-kLe has been a
long-time child advocate. And we look forward to a cooperative
agreement with the private sector to finally accomplish so many of

the things that we would like to, and to keep the integrity of this
issue on firm footing.

Thank you, Madam Chairman.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Howell follows:]

and
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF JAY HowELL %

<X

The Nationnl Center for Missing and Exploited Children was estobiished to zﬂl‘»‘

LA

initiate e notivnwide effort to protect children and to provide nssistance .n

w0
-

hundling cases of missing children, child molestation, child parnography und

.

!
"

child prostitution. The Center 18 a non-profit cotporation charteted for the

o4

purpose of operating a national resource and technical center to deal wath };«r\
the 1ssucs of missing and exploited children. Imitial funding for the Center .:\;f
came from the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention at the ’(\::3
United States Deportment of Justice. The Center officially began ils "3
om-mtvmn in mad June of 1984. The Congress of the United States mundaled by ':‘;é
legislution enacted into law an the fall of 1984 that such & national cenler ::
exist. ,'
V‘%‘
g
The core of the Center staff is a select group of former criminal Justice :;:
system and youth services professionels who have worked on the state and (:
locni level around the country and who have broad expertise in handling :;é\
cases of child victimization. We were very fortunate in securing the %‘
services of former prosccutors, police investigators, social services ~;,
pro“vssionals, counselors and therapists, and probation and parole officers .“'
to staff the National Center for Missing and Exploited Chjildren. The é
professionals who helped launch the National Center have had direct ‘é
experience 1n the criminal justice and social scrvices systems of more than o
ten states.
3
The goals of the National Center are one, to reduce the incidence of B
crizes ngainst children, and two, to assist the criminal justice system in
denling more cffectively with thesc tragedies when they do occur. =

ERIC 5%
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The services of the National Center focus on two different areas. The 1irst
involves the Division on Operations and Technical Assistance, and the second
involves the Division on Education, Prevention, and Public Awareness. The
Operations and Technical Assistance Division provides training assistence to
law enforcement and child protection agencies; agsists individuals, agencies,
and state and local governments involved in locating missing children and
invest:igating and prosccuting cases of abducted or exploited children; and
ndmir.aters a national toll-free hotline to report information regarding the

location of missing children.

The Education, Prevention, and Public Awareness Division of the National
Cente.' provides information and advice on effective state legislation to
ensurc the sefety and protection of children; develops prevention and
education programs for parents, schools, and communities; disseminates
information regarding proven techniques for implementing educational
programs; provides outreach progrsms to alert our society about the nature
and extent of child vactimization and exploitation; and coordinates among
missing children groups, families, law enforcement, and the media to
distribute photos and descriptions of missing children.

1

In the eleven months since the Center officially opened its doors, we

have developed and distributed five publications - a Directory of Support

Services and Resources for Missing and Exploited Children, a guide to
Sclected State Legislation, a Parental Kydnapping handbook of instruction,
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o, oducation and prevention brochure containing safety and precaution tips
for preventing child abduction and exploitation, and an informational
brochure. We have distributed over 75,000 of these publications, free ofs

charge, to concerned citizens and organizstions throughout the United States.

The National Center has developed an education and information program to
assla"; state lcgislatures in developing effective laws to protect clildren.
The guide to Sclected Stnte legislation has been distributed in all fifty
states and has been credited with the initiation and enactment of many new
laws to protech children. Individuals representing the National Center have
personally appepred in over thirty states in regard to this educational

effort for state laws to protcct children.

The National Center's technical assistance team of former law enforcement
and social scrvices professionals has trsined over 7,000 law enforcement and
social services professionals in more than twenty states. The National
Center for Missing and Bxploited Children has been at the heart of recent
efforts to develop a nationwide curriculum for the training of individuals
involved in the inveatigation and prosecution of crimes against children. We
have assisted families, law enforcement agencies and social services programs

in all fifty states.

In May, the National Center will issue its first in a serics of educut.ion

and prevention materials for the home, the school, and the community.
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The Center is developing a completely new approach to the education of 4
children in self-protection measures. We hope to distribute this information o
to families, schools and conunit.iu nationwide. é

In October 1984, the National Center opened up its national toll-free 'f
hotline number to bo used primarily for the reporting of information ‘93;5
regarding the location of mimsing children. From the inception of the ,\;
hotline until March 31, 1985, we received over 21,892 calls-—fncluding 'N
2,098 calls from individuals reporting information concerning the location of ::’
8 missing child, 1,216 colls reporting cases of children who have voluntarily ::
left home, 1,761 calls reporting cases of non-custodial abductions, 226 calls %:‘;
reporting cases of children kidnapped under unknown circumstances, and "
190 cells reporting cases of child sexual exploitation. In addition, we have
received 16,401 requests for information and general nssistance.

On Apral 29, 1985, the NBC television network for the third time ;
displayed pictures of missing children at the end of tic broadcast of the %

television movie ADAM.  Our toll-free lines, staffed by dedicated volunteers
and the cmployees of the Center, received more than twice the nunber of
telephone calls that had been recorded at the end of the second telecast of
ADAM one year earlier. In {hc four days after the third telecast of the
movic, 7,476 calls were received. Seven children were identified and

recovered as a result of this particular display of pictures.
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The National Center for Missing and Rxploited Children is not o location
center, an investigative agency or legal services provider. Instead. the
Center ia a clearinghouse providing resources through its .training. tecknical
assistance, and the 800-number for individuals and ogencies around the United
States to assist in the recovery of missing children. Since the inception of
the Center, 870 children whose cases had come to the attention of the
Natio'nal Center have been recovered and safely rcturned home. This is not to

say thot the Notional Center haos recovered these children. Rather, we have

assisted others in the recovery of these missing children.

The National Center for Missing and Exploited Children has been very
fortunutec to receive criticnl nssistance in terms of manpower nnd resources
from individuals and organizations throughout the United States. Over 150
volunteers nssisted the Notionol Center in the ndministration of the
toll-free lines after the television movie ADAM. In addition, the National
Center has a regular group of over 100 volurteer associates who provide

critical assistance to the programs of the Center. The private sector has

been very supportive of the programs of the National Center and has stepped
forward in many significant ways to assist us in ov~ efforts to reduce child
victimization. We cannot succeed without their help. The list of
individuals, organizations l.snd companies that have provided critical

assistonce is very long indeed. We are deeply 1n their debt.
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In cstablishing » national center for children, we may haye
underedtimated the critical needs that exist in this country for information,
assistance, and advice on the jsgsuc of child victimization. The stnff of the
National Center 18 now at 32 persons. Each day we reccive aver 600 telephone
calls for information or assistance. 1In addition, the toll-free telephone
line now takes in over 400 calls per day. We rcceive over 400 pieces of mail
cach duy, and we distribute over 1,200 pieces of written correspondence or
information weekly. gach week we receive approximately 150 inquiries

concernming the public displny of pictures of missing children.

The National Center for Missing and Bxploited Children has received great
cooperation and assistance from the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention of the United States Department of Justice. The
Federal Bureau of Investigation has been extremely helpful and cooperative in
establishing these critical progrems to aid children. We have developed a
very productive working relationship with state and local law enforcement
agencies throughout the country. The Congress of the United States and its
individual members have been purticularly helpful in providing a wide variety
of resources and assistance to ths Center in its imtial months of
operation. In general, we have witnessed a far-reaching and dromatic
increase in the willingness of this society to address the issue of

protection and safety of its youngest members.
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Our course has not been without its own obstoclos, however.
Unfortunately, we see regular evidence of misiuformation and misunderstonding
in regard to the issues of missing and expliited childron and the numbers of
victimized children. Often the sources of this inaccurate information are
individuals, agencies, and organizations that do not have hove a professionnl
backgr‘ound in crimes against children and who have not thoroughly studied the

issues.

As wc move 1nto a new ero of concern and oworcnoss, tho Nationul Center
sees a critical need for well-considered direction and careful guidance in
the child protection movement. We do not want to see the heightened
awarencss and sensitivity to these issues abused in a cavalier atmosphere or
in programs which cxploit tho issuo of missing or victimized children. We do
not want fam.lies and children to be afraid. Ws simply want them to be

careful.

We believe that the greatest hope for the future lies in three particular
areas: first, effective wducation and prevention programs for the home, the
achool and the community. Second, effective training for criminal Justice
system and social services professionals who must deal with these cases every

day. Third, the enactment of state laws to protect children.

‘4
LA SR

e



W
RS

59

The real challenge for the future is to ensure that the heightened awareness i
and attention to child victimization becomes a foundation for constructive

|
]
programs to cnsure the safety and protection of our youngest citizens. i
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Senator HAwkINs. Senator Bradley I am glad you have joined us.
Obviously you are very busy this morning, as are all of the Sena-
tors.

I will ask you for your statement at this time—and welcome you.
We appreciate your support. You have been a long-time advocate
and helped us from the very beginning in raising money. The
“Stars’ Toss” has been a successful program. We really have come
a long way, but we commend you for your continued interest, Sena-
tor, and enjoy working with you.

STATEMENT OF HON. BILL BRADLEY, A U.S. SENATOR, FROM THE
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Senator BrabpLEY. Thank you very much, Senator Hawkins, Sena-

tor Dodd, members of the committee.

¢ me thanl: you for this opportunity and also thank you for
your leadership on this issue. I do not really think that we would
have seen missing children’s legislation without your active person-
al involvement. And as I have said to you a number of times, ] am
very pleased to have joined you in those efforts and think that we
did something important.

So I am pleased to have the opportunity to testify before {?ur
subcommittee today and talk about the public response in New
Jersey to help missing children.

As a cosponsor of the Missing Children’s Act of 1982, and a co-
sponsor of the Missing Children’s Assistance Act of 1984, and as a
citizen deeply concerned about the welfare of teday’s children, and
frankly, as a father, I feel very strongly that we need to do as
much as we can to highlight the problem of missing children. And
I know the Walshes were on earlier, and I am sure there is no
more poignant nor touching testimony, nor reslly, testimony of
personal strength than their own story.

There are many initiatives currently being carried out in New
Jersey to help missing children and their families. The need for at-
tention to this problem is clear. Last year, there were almost 10,000
New Jersey children reported missing—10,000. Most came home
unharmed. But many of these were teenage runaways still missing;
some were thought to have been abducted by parents without cus-
tody, and an alarming number were believed to be victims of invol-
untary abduction or sexual exploitation.

It is my hope that the efforts currently underway in New Jerse
and the Natior wili enable us to reduce these numbers. We are all
working toward the same goal. We want to avoid the tragedy of
even one missing child.

I am extremely pleased that we now have in place both the 1982
and the 1984 missing chi'dren’s legislation, again, accomplished
largely through your leadership. And I think that both of them
were sponsored by a number of us in Congress as well who were
sensitized to this issue.

This Federal legislation is an important step. The new National
Center for Missing and Exploited Children has been very instru-
mental in providing information to community groups in New
Jersey and elsewhere on effective programs as well as specific
ceses.
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I have been a strong proponent of missing: children legislation at
the Federal level, as I have tried to make in the last minute abun-
dantly clear, but the Federal legislation alone cannot eliminate
this serious problem. I wish it were that simple. But it will take
stronger State laws and a solid network in schools, homes, and
neighborhood organizations to return these children to their par-
ents and prevent more children from joining the ranks of the miss-

ing.

go, with that preamble, I would like to report on the positive
steps that I see occurring in New Jersey.

The State of New Jersey has established a Commission on Miss-
ing Children which is currently conducting a series of hearings
across the State in an effort to identify State and local legislative
reforms to help missing children.

In an effort to promote Missing Children’s Dag,ethe Foundation
to Find and Protect New Jersey’s Missing Children is conducting
three events through the State to publicize the plight of missing
children. The New Jersey foundation, which has been deeply in-
Vﬁll;'ed with this issue, has helped to locate seven children so far
this year.

I am heartened by the teamwork of our law enforcement agen-
cies in New Jersey. In New Jersey, we have some of the best laws
on the books for reporting missing children. All missing children
reports must be immediately entered into the FBI computer. This
is the case in only five other States. And law enforcement officials
must act immediately if there is a report ot & missing child.

There is no waiting period in New Jersey, as there is in many
other jurisdictions. Some of the advances in New Jersey are the
resuit, I think, of one very dedicated man. That is Dick Ruffino,
who you have met. He is a leader ir. this field, and has recently

n appointed executive secretary uf the New Jersey Commission
on Missing Children. His active involvement has helped locate lit-
erally many, many missing children. And he has spent countless
hours speai.ing to community groups and educating the public
about this important issue. He has helped, in a sense, to bring the
community together on this issue.

There are many other examples of teamwork in New Jersey
across geographical and organizational boundaries. For example,
the New dJersey Education Association and the New Jersey Con-
gress of Parents and Teachers distributed a directory of missing
children to all of the schools in the State.

One of the most important efforts now underway is being con-
ducted by our State transportation system. New Jersey Transit is
currently displayirg photographs of missisg children on buses and
trains and at major stations and terminals throllflghout the State to
aid in the ~ampaign to locate missing children. New Jersey Transit
is providing copies of {)hotographs to shopping malls, food markets,
and libraries for display to make even more people aware of the
plight of missing children.

There are other examples. Many dairies in New Jersey, includ-
ing Tuscan Dairies, are placing pictures of missing children on
their milk cartons. The Ocean County Cab Association provides
cabbies on the New Jersey shore with a directory of missing chil-
dren. The Thurston Motor Lines Trucking Co., whose regional of-
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fices are in Clifton New Jersey, is now posting photographs of miss-
ing children on their fleet of trucks. In addition, the drivers are
carrying data and other photos for d:stribution at delivery points
on their routes.

In summary, Madam Chairperson, in New Jersey, this problem is
starting to get the attention it needs. More needs to be done—sure.
Many new law enforcement officers still need to be sensitized to
the issue—right. But we are on the right track. And I look forward
to the coming year as one in which more orgavizations and individ-
uals will be involved in the search for and prevention of missing
children. For example, neighborhood organizations snch as the
YMCA and boys and girls clubs could undoubtedly provide much
needed assistance in this team effort.

It is easy to distance ourselves from the reality of missing chil-
dren or to lose ourselves in statistics. But it is the saC.ness of a case
like Adam Walsh, which was again told today—abducted at a local
shopping center, murdered days later—it is that kind of story that
drives home the tragic reality of the problem and the urgency of
our team effort.

In years to come, working together, we will measure our success
by joyful reunions that we have helped to bring about, and by the
separetions that we have prevented. I am confident that our net-
work of families, schools, local and State organizations will succeed,
and I support this subcommittee and the members for the assist-
ance that we need to generate in our States.

I might say parenthetically that I think the States can and must
do more. Each of us as Senators can make an impact beyond le?is-
lation. Let me give you just one example. Last year in my newslet-
ters, I highlighted the do’s and don’ts, sent it to school districts. I
knew the message was getting through when my 8-year-old daugh-
ter brought home from her school a list of dn’s and don’ts. I was
very interested in that, and I was particularly interested in the
print, which was an exact Xerox of my newsletter, with one excep-
tion—Senator Bradley’s neme had been cut off the top.

You know you are providing your constituents valuable informa-
tion that they need and want and that performs a public service
when you start to get that information back in terms of nonpoliti-
cal, direct-line information to parents across our State, and I hope,
the country.

So I want to salute you and the committ.ce, and appreciate your
adjusting your schedule, and apologize to the panel for wadirg
through this bit of personal testimony and renewed commitment to
what I think we all feel very, very personally, and about which, I
think we have not only responsibility but an opportunity to do
something.

Thank you, Madam Chairman.

Senator Hawkins. Thank you, Senator.

Senator Grassley is here, and has some questions for you, Jay.

Senator GRASSLEY. Thank you very much, Madam Chairman, and
the other members of the committee, for letting me agk questions
first in regard to this panel, and thank you, Mr. Howell, for your
participation, your role here and your leadership, particularly the
difficult one of getting a program going. I understa; 4 those prob-
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lems, but I would like to share with you some questions about the
role of the Center.

That would be in regard to the role that you see for the Center
i communicating to parents and from 1 law enforcement offi-
cials about any sxghMg:,hFrogreu reports, et cetera, that they
might have on a missing child. '

Mr. HowzLL. The system that we use now, Senator Grassley is
one that, when the information comes in over the 800 telephone
line, the information is taken down in computer form and i
uted to the law enforcement agency that is working the cass,
whether that be Federal, State, or local, anywhere in the United
States, and it is distributed in three different ways.

In addition, if the parents or family or other organizations who
are working the case ask us about the existence of lead informa-
tion, we explain to them that lead information has been received,
without characterizing it or qualifying it, and indicate to the:n that
it has been forwarded to the appropriate lnw enforcement agency.
That is the system that we now use.

Senator GRAssLEY. Well, then, I guess that would lead %o a fur-
ther question as to an explanation of why the Center might not
share—or, I guess it is the case it does not share—all those vsrious
leads with parents.

Mr. HoweLL. There are two reasons. The first one is thot people
would get killed if we did that.

Senator GRASSLEY. What?

Mr. HoweLL, People would get killed if we did that. We have had
a very difficuit problem on this issue, and we share and have
always advocated the parents position to have a right to know that
information. However, we do not want a situation in this country
in regard to the leads of missing children where individual action
is taken by persons outside of law enforcemer:i. We have had epi-
sodes where someone acted upon information that may or may not
have been accurate, may or may not have been well-founded, and
accused individuals, stopped individuals—I can think of a couple of
cases in Oklahoma where young children—ver{1 unpleasant situa-
tions—where young children were accosted in the middle of public
settings by people who believed that they might have been their
child. It is a difficult situation. But one prohibition is there is a lot
of danger involved. That is, we do not want people acting on a lead
or information and going out and doing something about it before
it has been checked out by the people whose job it is to do that.

There is one more problem, and that is this. In order to try to
develop this process, we tapped into an important resource—the
law enforcement exchange network. We have something called
“inlets”. We are trying to get additional access to certain parts of
the National Crime Information Center. When we do that and tap
into those, we have to make agreements. It is not simple and
where they just say, “Yes, have all the information that you want.”
The agreement that we have to make to use that is to vrotect the
integrity of the information the same way that law euforcement
protects it.

So one problem—and I know this is the iesue that you are articu-
lating, and you are exactly right—is what about the situation
where the parents have a great deal of difficulty in getting tha.
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local law enforcement agency to act upon that information. And it
is a real issue, and while it may not be acroas-the-board, it is criti-
cal in certain cases. and I know that parents have had a lot of diffi-
culty in many.

I think the solution to that, the way the system works now, is to
have them go to that agency, know the exisicnce of leads, that is,
an information has been given, and t-, work divectly with them on
it. The policy varies, as you can imagine, department to depart-
ment around the United States, in the policy agencies, as to wheth-
er they wiii share information.

Yesterday we had a hearing where the police officer from Pitts-
burgh testified that she does not regularly share information with
parents on everzy iead—and she is a very sensitive person, has
worked this for 25 years, and does a very good job. But the reason
she articulated yesterday was because of the roller<oaster effects
on raising their hopes.

So I do not think there is an answer. I know the concern that
you have, and there is not an easy answer to it, because it does not
work perfectly. But that is the system that we have set up to try to
address all those needs.

Senator GrassLEy. Well, as a natural follow-up of that—and do
not let me say, because I did not question further on that point,
that I agree, but I am Roing to have to study your point of view—
but let me make a quai..ative judgment before I g0 on to my next
and last question.

It seems to me like in certain areas where a famiiy might be
hiring its own investigators, that if there is information available,
there ought to be some way we :ould see that that information
would be used responsibly by knowing something about the private
investigators, so that parents would not be paying for information
that is already available. That is my judgment. It seems to me
there ought to be some way that could be worked out, so there
could be a_determination of responsible use of information as op-
posed to what you might consider irresponsible and dangerous use
of information.

But let me go on, then. In regard to the point that you made,
that the information is sent out to the local law enforcement agen-
cies, and then it ought to be available at that point for the parents
w request of the law enforcement people, you know, are certain
leads being followed up on—how do we know, how can we be sure,
that the leads are sent by the Center to the iocal law enforcement
agency, so we know that that local law enforcement agency knows
as much about it as you do?

Mr. HoweLL. We use three different vehicles to send them the
information. One is the Resource Information Center that I re-
ferred to, something called “INLETS”. It is the police teletype in-
formation network that is used. You see it on television, where
they say, “Send out an all-points bulletin,” or something like that.
That is one way. It is a written format. You type it into the termi-
nal that we have, and it goes out over the systom. Is there a fool-
proof check on that? Yes, becausge all of our inquiries are moni-
tored by the Department of Justice, so that information is checked
and known to be there.
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The other way that the information goes out is over the tele-
phone, if it is an immediate need, and througn the mail, to send
the vritten information. But there is another guarantee that some-
one could check, and that is this. Every time a lead comes in to the
National Center, we put that information in a computerized proto-
col and store it. So if someone were to come to us and to say, “We
would like to see all of the information of lead sightings that have
been received on this particular child,” that information exists.
And I think if that issue ever came up to be a serious issue in an
individual case, a procedure could be worked out with the law en-
forcement and Department of Justice communities to be able to ex-
amine that information. It does not get discarded. It is permanent-
ly recorded.

Senator GrassLey. Thank you, Mr. Howell.

Madam Chairman, I am done. Thank you very much.

Senator HAwkiNs. Thank you.

We would like to hear the testimony of Mayor Owens. Welcome,
Donna.

Mayor Owens. Thank you, Senator Hawkins.

First and foremost, I too would like to thank you for your leader-
ship in this area. The greatest resource that we have in our Nation
is our children, and it is really great to finally see a lobbying force
for our children in this Nation, at not only the Federal level, but
now at the State and the local level as well. But we certainly have
a long way to go.

As chairman of the advisory board for Missing Children, I cannot
state enough what a fine board has been put together to serve the
United States Congress and the President of the United States.
This board is not going to be a rubber-stamp board; I guarantee
you. I have never seen sc many people working so hard on an issue
that is burning in each and every one of them.

It is their intent that when the work is finished, that there will
be a comprehensive plan that will have a significant impact on this
problem in our country.

The board was officially sworn in on March 8. We toured the Na-
tional Center after the swearing in ceremony, and the following
day, we had our first meeting, an all day meeting, as well as public
testimony. Last weekend, we went to Louisville, KY on Friday and
Saturday. And primarily because one of our board members is the
attorney general of Kentucky, David Armstrong, and they have
been a leader in the Nation as far as as putting things together to
really address this problem—we had two panel discussions, and the
panelists were speaking to us on Kentucky’s efforts, from the local
level, the State level, as well as the public and grivate partnership,
which is extremely important and crucial to the success of real y
dealing with this problem in our Nation.

We received a lot of information, and we also had the opportuni-
ty to ask them “What would you like to see us as a board really do
and really accomplish?”’ And they kef'ed in on four areas. 'I%xey
want a program, a blueprint, if you will, so that States throughout
this country will have a package to follow. Every State needs a
child abuse sexual exploitation board. Every State needs a clearing-
house. That is happening, slowly, and as we all know, the bureau-
cratic process moves a lot slower than we would like it to. But it is
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extremely important that we continue to keep our eye on the goal
or the target, and work as hard as we can to move that as 3uickly
as possible. And finally, to categorize missing children and evelop
specific pr for the various categories.

We also had the opportunity to go out on the streets with the
special units that they have in Louisville. There are five units, and
basically, what they have is an officer riding with a social worker
to see just how they are dealing with the problem in their commu-
nity. I believe it was an eye-opener to each and every one of us,
am{wetoowillbetakingt t back to our next board meeting, and
I am sure, to our own ive cities and States, as well.

The board has disc priorities, and we feel very strongy that
we should be using the funds that we have allocated for the pur-
pose of education and training and the development of model pro-
grams that can be utilized throughout this Nation.

We have appropriated or recommended an appropriation of
roughly $2 million of the $4 million that hae been appropriated for
the Missing Children’s Board, and we will be working towards the
development, the training, and also, the model programs, with the
$2 mxll ion allocation that we have left.

Again, I cannot stress enough the involvement, the concern, and
the stick-to-it-iveness that this board has in dealing with this prob-
lem. And I would like to name one particular board member, who
is a businessman from Houston, TX, Mr. Byron Donzis. He recog-
nized even before we had our first meeting how important it was to
get the private sector involved, because as we know, govern-
ment does not have enough money to go around to deal with some
of the significant problems that we have in our Nation. And he has
been working diligentlﬁ with the private sector for involvement so
that we can have much more than we would be able to have with
public moneys.

And I am looking forward, Senator Hawkins, to working with
you on the public/private sector group, because I feel that we are
going tokbe able to accomplish so much.

you.

Senator Hawkins. It is working very well, and I enjoyed the
beard meeting, also.

We would next like to hear from attorney general Lieberman of
Connecticut.

Welcome.

Mr. LieBerMAN. Thank you, Senator Hawkins, Senator Grassley,
and my own Senator Dodd, in absentia. Thank you for giving me
this opportunity to speak with you today about this urgent probiem
from my perspective as the attorney general of Connecticut.

As the parent of three children, I am naturally concerned about
the protection of children. But I must say that as Attorney Gener-
al, I first became active‘:;ly involved in this problem when I had the
honor of hosting John Walsh during his visit to Hartford last year,
and his eloquence, borne of the pain of his own experience, really
moved me to act.

I joined forces with a group called Friends of Child Find in Con-
necticut, and we began to think about how we could make a differ-
ence. One of the first things that came to mind was a problem, a
shocking problem, that John Walsh mentioned to us and which has
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been talked about somewhat here today. It is the fact that too
many police departments around the country do not respond imme-
diately to a missing child report. They assume that a missing child
is a runaway, and wait 24 hours or even more, before they actually
begin to search for that child.

decided to survey the police departments in Connecticut. And,
as John suggested earlier, I was disappointed that one-third of
them did not even answer the survey, which raised questions in my
mind about what practices they were following. ,

Of those who did answer, 75 percent said they had no waiting
period. But one of every four police departments admitted' that
they wait some period of time before responding to a report of a
missing child. In one town, an immediate search is begun only if
the child is under 10 years of age; and in another town, the speed
of the response depends on the particular officer who happens to
take the call reporting a child as missing.

Police departments must investigate all missing children reports
immediately; to wait can mean a tregedy. For missing children, 24
hours can be too long and simply too late. It was for a 16-year-old
girl in Norwich, CT. One night in 1984, she disapgﬁared. Her father
called che police. The first police reaction was, “Maybe she is late.
Probably she is just a runaway.” And so they waited. And, while
thgy waited, she suffered and was killed by her kidnapper.

o address the need for a statewide response to the missing chil-
dren crisis, we introduced a package of bills in the Connecticut
Legislature. And I am pleaseJ to say that we will soon have our
first permanent, statewide, missing children’s bureau ogerating
within our State police department. We will also have a law that
mandates an immediate response by police in Connecticut to miss-
ing children reports, and another that will require that informa-
tion about missing children be fed into the National Crime Infor-
mation Center. That missing children’s bureau will also be in-
volved in education programs, which I think are at the heart of
this whole problem of missing children.

So much emphasis nationally has been placed on activities such
as fingerprinting, which are helpful after the tragedy has occurred.
But we need to act to prevent the tragedy. We need preventive edu-
cation.

I worked with the Friends of Child Find in Connecticut to
produce this brochure. It is a very simple statement called “Protect
Your Children.” It is written in plain language to help parents un-
derstand what precautions they should take and what advice they
should give to their children. I am pleased to say that more than a
half-million of these have been distributed now in Connecticut,
thanks to businesses in our State, the schools, and the media.

While we do not want children to grow up frightened by the
world around them, I think it is so clear from what has been said
this moraing that it is no longer enough for parents to simply say
to their kids, “Don’t accept candy from a stranger.” Child abusers,
child molesters, and chilg kidnapers have become too brgnzen and
too diabolical for that.

There was a recent case in the Hartford area, a case that occurs,
I am afraid, all too often, where a young girl was stopped by a man
in a car as she was walking to school. He told her that her mother
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had been taken to the hospital, and he was sent to bring her to the
hospital. In that case, that girl was wary enough and repared
enough to run home and call the police. But I asked myse , would
my children, and I asked others, would their children, gzepared
enough to respond to that emotionally charged appeal in that way.
Until we can answer that question, “Yes”, we have to provide pre-
ventive education.

Let me just briefly give you an example of some of the common-
sense advice we give to parents and children in our brochure.

Never leave your child unattended in a car. It is a fact that it
takes cnly 5 seconds to abduct a child from a car.

Teach your child not to let anyone touch any of their body
that is covered by a bathing suit. Let your child know that not
every adult has authority over them. It is important for them to
havelanz: parent’s permission to say “No” to an adult that they do
not know.

And never put your child’s name on the exterior of clothing, be-
cause it makes it too easy for a stranger to call that child by their
first name and act familiar.

I am pleased that there is now a long-term national preventive
education éxhrﬁgram being planned by the Center for Missing and
Exploited Children, the Department of Education, and the National
Education Association. We really need it, and we need it through
our Nation’s schools.

And I want to say to you, Senator, that the costs for preventive
education are not large when we think about what is at stake. We
spend billions of dollars every year to defend our country and our
security against the potential tﬁ'reat. Yet here, we have a very real
threat to the security of our children, and we really spend next to
nothing. For a relatively small increase in the appropriations that
are part of the act that you sponsored, Congress can really assist
the states in establishing clearinghouses and in creating programs
of preventive education, and in training law enforcement people
about how to handle missing children cases.

I ask you to think again of the numbers—1.5 million people. Can
you imagine what our Government would do if every resident of
Oakland, CA, Dallas, TX, and Miami, FL, disappeared in 1 year?
That is 1.5 million people. That is the scope of the missing children
problem, and it is why we need to act.

Some people say that a lot of missing children are actually taken
by their parents. Well, that is true. But that certainly does not
mean that they are safe. In fact, there is a widespread and I think
tragic misconception that parental abduction is less serious than
stranger abduction. I know that many ple do not even like to
talk about this problem because it is awkward, and some take it to
be a private matter. But it is not a private matter because kids are
the victims. We cannot ignore the fact that two-thirds of the chil-
dren who are abducted every year are taken by one of their own
parents. And we cannot ignore the fact that many of those kids are
nolested and abused by their parents.

In fact, one analysis that I read recently showed that more than
one-third of all parental abductors have charges vending against
them for child abuse. Our society, and frankly, Jjudges and prosecu-
tors and police, do not consider parental abductions as the seriots
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crimes that they are. We must become more aggressive in prosecut-
ing parental abductors. And here, we do not need laws. You in the
Congress and we in the States have by and large provided the laws.
What we need is speedier and stronger enforcement by Federal and
State and local law enforcement authorities.

So I would sum up what I have said in three basic points. We
need your help, and the States need to exercise initiatives in creat-
ing statewide clearinghouses that will immediately respond to
missing children reports.

Two, we need to spend more money on programs of preventive
education.

And third, we have to change our awareness of parental abduc-
tion and treat it as the very serious crime that it actually is.

Thank you very much for giving me this opportunity.

Senator HawxkiNs. Thank you very much. We appreciate your
contribution and your sensitivity.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Lieberman follows:]
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Chairman Hawkins, Senator Dodd, Honorable Members. Thank
you for this opportunity to speak with you today about the urosnt
problem of missing and exploited children.

As a parent, I am naturally concerned about the protection
of children. But, as Attorney General, : first became involved
in the problem of rissing children because of John Walsh, who
visited me during a trip to Hartford. His eloquence, born of the
pain he endured when his son Adam was kidnapped and killed, moved
me to act.

I joined forces with Diane McCausland and Thomas Fallo of
Connecticut, Friends of Child Find, a non-profit group, and we
began to think about how we could make a difference. One of the
first things that came to mind was a shocking fact revealed to me
by John Walsh: too many police departments across the counry do
not immediately investigate all missing childrén reports. Some
wait up to 24 hours -- Or more -- before launching a full search!

So I surveyed, in conjuction with the Connecticut Police
Chief's Ascociation, all the police departments in Connect:icut,
asking them to tell me how they responded to missing children
reports. One third of the departments did not even respond to
the survey. Of those who did, 75% said they had no waiting
period.
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But one of every four police departments admitted that they
do have a waiting period. In one town, an immediate search 1s
begun only for children under age 10! In another, the speed of
the response 1s left to the officer who happens to receive the
report.

Police departments should immediately investigate all
reports involving missing children. Not to do so can be tragic.

For m1ssing children, twenty four hours may be too late. It
was for a 16 year old girl from Norwich, Connecticut, who
disappeared one night 1n 1984. Her family told the police about
her disappearance, but the police assumed she was just late, or
perhaps a runaway. They waited. And while they waited, she
suffered and died at the hands of her kidnapper.

To address the need for a statewide response to the m1Ssing
children problem, we proposed a series of bills to our
Connecticut General Assembly. We will soon have, for the first
time, a permanent Missing Children's Bureau within our State
Police to coordinate an immediate, statewide reaction to miSsing
children reports.

This bureau will also establish educationa! programs for law
enforcement officials, parents, teachers and children throughout
Connecticut. And this gets me to what I consider the main focus
of our efforts in Connecticut -- preventive educat.on.

Up to now, much of the emphasis nationally has been on
hot!ines, fingerprinting and dissemination of missing children
photographs on mi1lk cartons, 1n schools and on shopping bags.
Those are all important and useful tools. But to emphasize them
alone would be a mistake.
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We need preventive education. We need to inform people
about the threat to our children. We need to teach them about
steps they can take to protect their families from the tragedy of
child abduction.

I worked with Connecticut Friends of Child Find to produce
this brochure. Paid for by Phoenix Mutual Life Insurance, Aetna
Life & Casualty, Northeast Utilities, Travelers and Cigna. It 1s
a simple introduction to the kinds of precautions parents should
take, and advise they should give to their children. More than
half a million of these are now being distributed in Connecticut,
by businesses, sctools, and the media.

While we do not want chiluren to grow up frightened by the world
around them 1t 15 no longer enough to simply tell your child not
to take candy from a stranger. Child molesters and kidnappers
are becoming far too brazen and diabolical. There was a recent
case in the Hartford area where a man drove up alongside a girl
on her way to school and was tcld that her mother was taken <o
the hospital, and he was sent to pick her up. In this case the
child was wary enough to go home and call the police. But are my
children -- and your children -- prepared to resist this kind of
emotional solicitation?

Here are some of the common sense tips we recommend 1n our
brochure:

* Never leave your child unattended in a car. It 1s a
proven fact that 1t takes less than five seconds to abduct a
child.

* Teach your child not to let anyone touch them on any part
of their body that their bathing suit covers.

* Let your child know that not every adult has authority
over them; they should have your permission to say "NO" to an
adult whom they do not know.
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* And never put your child's name on exterior clothing --
it gives an abductor the chance to address the child like a
friend.

The key to a successful prevention program is that it be
long term. Every three years, a new generation of children
reaches the age when they must be taught 10w to protect

themselves against this awful threat. ¢
I am pleased that a long term national, prevention effort is ”g

now being initiated. The National Education Association, the H
Department of Education and the National Center for Missing and K
Exploited Children are cooperating to develop model education o
courses. N
) %

A

. The costs for preventive education are not immense. We .5
spend billions on defense to counter potential threats to our 74
national security. VYet we have a real threat to our children's 3
security on which we spend next to nothing. For a relatively .
small increase in appropriations, you, in Congress, can encourage R
the states to establish missing children clearinghouses, to !
initiate programs of preventive education, and to train police, i
prosecutors and judges to better handle missing children cases. &
Think again of the numbers: 1.5 million children missing 3
every ycar. Can you imagine the reaction of our government if 2
every person )n Miami, Oakland, and Dallas disappeared without a p
trace? That's the size of the missing children problem, and yet K
only now are we beginning to wake up ap? take notice of it. ‘%
%
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Some people say a lot of missing children have merely been E
taken by one of their parents. But that does not mean they are 2

safe.
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In fact, there is a most widespread, and tragic
misconzeption that parental abduction is somehow less serious
than akduction by strangers. I know that parental abduction is
a svbject many people do not want to talk about because it is
considered to be a private matter. But we cannot ignore the fact
that two-thirds of the children abducted every year are abducted
by one of the.r parents. And ve cannot ignore the fact that many
of those children . re molested or abused by that abducting
parent. One estimate indicates that more than one-third of all
parental abductors have charges pending against them for child
abuse., Our society, and, frankly, too many of our judges,
prosecutors and police do not consider parental abductions as
the serious crimes they really arec.

We must become more aggressive in prosecuting cases of
narental abduction. We do not need nevw laws as much as we need
better and speedier enforcement of existing laws by federal,
state, and local authoraities.

So, iet me reemphasize these three points:
1) Every state should have a missing children's bureau;

2) wWe ought to be spending more to educate parents,
children, and the authorities; and

3) We have to change attitudes about parental kidnappings,
and enforce the laws that prohibit them.

Thank you very much.
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by Attorney General Joseph . Lieberman _

PROTECT YOUR CHILDREN
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Dear Friend :
1t 16 haed to Imagine sometling more horrifying than to have & Chid missing i
But. sadly, it happens tome 1,5 mitlion times every yeat in this coantry  White :-'-
some Czses are eantly resolved, in 100 many ances the Chlld becomes envcloped et
In the nideous world of chIMd pornography, ot 18 beaten or murdered 4
{ had the hOnoOt of hosting Joha Welsh duting his recent vistt to Haetford N
Johns 5o, Adam, was the subject of a major television movie that Chronicled ‘
A Message From bia kidnapping and his patent s quest 1o locate him  JORR Walth now serves a5 .
1 8 1pecis! sdvisor to the newly-formed National Center for Missing asd Bxplolted v
he L Chlldren, and Me travels the country to educste people about the missing Children *
H Crisls  His comPelling s10ry prompted me to become Involved and seck ways N
Attorney H 10 addsess the tragedy here In Connecticut "
G \ | Dave deen In touch with state residents who have expertise In this field, e
eners J 1 particular the volunteers who make up Feiends of Chiid Find The following e
M safety precautions have been assembied by them 10 provide You with guldance §
on how to protect your chlldren 2
Reading and understanding these Frecavti vent heartache n
and pain later on EG
y. .
sopbiir
torney 2 .
1 Teach your chilcren the 1acts about abduchon and what il means 10 Grve your chid permession 10 say NO 10 an adutt Be sure they -
o aa arly 330 realize that 0ot every adult has Juthonty over 3 child aspacially o that .
e 41 1 nav M
2 Detine what a stranget is Lel your childrenknow that just decause :::‘(:;“ askedyour chid 1o 6o somethung that you 3 €tavghtthem s %
Liey seesomeone everyddy [1or inslance Ihe maidman paperboy ¢
milkman neighbor| Joes st mean thal Inese people are not strangers it B¢ sure your chutg unders1ands that no one has the right 1o 1ouch

hem 00 3ny partof thew body that 3 batng suit covers Teachthemto
tell you about it it someone Goes Be prepares 1o listen and remembet

Ihatitiake less than Sseconds to adducl a chid rom a car Some people lhlIY(li(n vy rarely say ”mmﬁo?:“ snttwe

who wouldnt 1hunk about iedving thewr waliet exposes on Ine seal of

Iheir €31 €O teave Iheir chikdren 5o exposed’ 12 113 VERY IMPORTANT that your chidren be abdle 1o tatk fo you

Encourage them to tedl you about anyone who approdches them and

offers Inem QIS treats of wanls ¢ take their pictuses

H Teacn your chidren thewr full name your rame address and 13

telephone numbder inchiBing area codes

3 NEVER ieave you child unattenced in a venicle It aproventaci

4 ALWATS accompany your chitd to the bathroom in a pudiic place

NEVER atiow your cnuld to appradch 3 car Lo offer drections
Abductors will prey Jpon 2 ctuld 5 sense of Sympathy (1or example

6 Get 3map and 3w your chitdren to color i thew home state 50 have lost my puppy Can you help me find him? §

that they can understand its name and geographic 10¢ation "% Teach your child 10 te”t you it someone has asked themtokeepd
7 Teath your ¢hiid how o use 3 tefephone Praclice using 3 oay secret from you

telephone 15 KeeP your child 11 sight atati times Shopping malls are crowded
8 CHIDFIND Inc 15 2 national t.an prold orgamzation gedicated and otter abductors aneasy place toprckupchitdren Oider chekdiren may
10 the well deing of Chidien 1 oper ates a 24 hout Lot Liee nymbder 1-900- ol want 1013y with you bul 40 nol 311ow them 1o wader 31ound alone
431 5005 Teach your chid thig number to catt it they are 103! Or need 16 Know yout child s route 1o $chool Encouage chiidrenty buady

Peip Be sure ihey alwdys arry endugh change to make 3 phone €all up A Child who rs part of 3 9roup is less vulneratie than 2 chitd who

9 Make sure your child asver accepts gifts or candy 1om strangers §oes dlone
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7 OEMAND that your chid have a CALL BACK system if your ek
does ot artave 215CNOOT The $CAOO! May want 10 use volunteer s to help
umplement such 2 system Be sure That the 5¢hool has 2 rumber whete
you €20 be teached at home or at werk so that you can receive
1mmed:ate notification 1f your child does not come to s¢hdol

® Be involved 10 yOur ¢Mid s activites Know the bocalons of
places he/she goes Know alf of the adulls that your ciid wll be
2350C12ted with

9 Know the names of your cheigren s friengs Know where they hive
and how [0 reach them Too many parents 6o not know who ther
chuikdren s tnends are~parlcularty with teenagers

20 Be extienely cautous = setecting bodysitiers ang day care
cenlers ALWAYS che.a seferences Know the people who are
responsidle 10¢ your chuld

20 Instrktschools Dabysiiers and friends who are canng 1of yous
cheid AOT 10 3'1ow your child 10 5O with 3ny0ne byt yOu uniess Otherwise
ar1anged

2 Crilgren who are home aione SHOVId neveR epen the Goor to
strangers Be sure the 6o0rs 319 windows 0 your home 2re secure
Chatdren shouid KEVER volunteer 1n10rmation 10 anyone on the
Ielephone thal they are home alone Teachthemto say My mother is in
the shower and can not come to the telephone 1ght now May I take
message?

a3 Post emergency telephone numbers atthe phone notSomewhere
where your Chad wil! have 1o search for them Include POLICE FIRE
DEPARTMENT AMBULANCE AND FRIENDS AND NEGHBORS CLOSE BY
Write 10 your 20dress nedr these numbers $o your ciuld can easdy fel
authotitres know the location

24 Insistthal your could contact someone if they Teel somethung 1s
SuSpicIous Okser ehdd en Shoukd 14310 10 1eCOQNuze S USPIIOUS Behavior
and should De Laught to recogrize charactensts 59 thal a description
€an be gtven 10 you or Jhe poice This holds true Jor descriding cars and
lgense plates Teach them towrite Sown the plate number inthe St with
2 stick it necessary

25 AvoiS dressing your chiléren 1n cOtung that has then names
phinted on them Make sure thal your chidren know that just decause
30meone kAOWS their ~IME I does ot mean the personknows them
Chutgren are less fearful Of someone who calis them dy name

% Ob1air 2 passport 101 yout Child 1o seduxe the chance that your
Chikd will De Laken At of the country

27 Teach your ctiid that adu ts rarely ask chidren 10r help If
someone asks them for Girections or help in 1NGING SOMething your
€huld Should be Taught 10 sgaore them and go home o to anoIher sate
place

Fe ) Teach your chii6 that st he/she 1s being followed andcannotrun
Safely home of [0 2 public place they should yell for help They should
NEVER st runandude because they may put themselves i an isviated
10¢a1i0n and vulne adle to atracx
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% 1 somedne Grads hotd of your Chikd teach um/het [0 yetl dite
hick an¢ 10 Graw atiention to the sitvation They should yoil tor
exzmpie "HELP ME hes 15 aet my €a¢y/mommy!

X0 Myou o yourset! M 2 position wheie 3 Ched 2ppeals 10 youtor
“eip e prepared to offer it

3 Besomeone your ¢ 44 can talk 1o Be sersitive to changwg
MOOds aNd dehdvior And NZVER beliltie your thid s tears

x Take 2 look alyour eteiirendaily Know whatthey were weanng
rhen they teft the house

3 Bemater stisctn discussng Salely with yow chidren Teachng
them how 1o be safe should be no more lrightentng [and no fess
WmpOctant] than feaching them not 12 play in trat of touch ahot stove

CHILD FINDER KIT—

A Mg Finger KN ¢~ be inv2iuable should yout chid be missing CHILD
FI3C ang othet 01030220003 have UK pre packaged hits avaitable
but it you 60 Nt purchase one keep your own kit that inctudes

2 cxent clear color photographs ot your cheid [take 2 new one
3 feast once per yeat]

b fingerprnts and footpiints

¢ photograph of al scars buthmarks deformities

¢ dental ang medwat records

1 1ck of haw

¢ Physical Cescnpicn including helght. weight coler of eyss sad
ale

h sample of handwritng
1 2 recording of the chid s voxe
) complete tamdly hustory — paternat and maternat
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If Your Child
Is 7 3sfmg ....

t CALL TKE POUCE Ask them to hlf out 2 miISSing persons report
immediatnly

2 1 they tell you there 15 2 waiting £20103 tek them you wish to
waive that penod Tefl ther. you want them o tile your child s
descriplion with the F BI rght now

3 €311 311 of your frenct relatives 304 neighdors Grganize a search
party

4 Put up Dosters immediatery and contact the media
5 Check 10 ses f any othet chuldren are missing

6 Runaways may hide out with 111ends for 2 8ay of two 30 1 your
search begins immediately you may be abie to 10cate your chwid before
21 hours has passed

7 Contact anports train stations ang

8 Contact the PORT AUTHORITY PGLICE YOUTH SERVICE URITattne
by tetmmal 10 M2nnat1an Thisis 2 mecca tor runaways The number
there i3 212 502 2205

9 Cati CHILD FIND at 1000431 5005.

GEDOIS in your 21ed

FOR MORE tRFORMATION On Freends of Chutd Find contact Diane
McCaustand at 673 1500
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State of Connecticnt

Office of The Attorney Genernl
30 Tmsaty SIN(LY
HARTFORO 08108

SUMMARY OF LOCAL POLICE RESPONSES
TO THE ATTORNEY GENERAL'S
QUESTIONNAIEE ON MISSING CHILDREN

97 questionnaires were sent out to the various local police
departments. We received 6& responses for a response rate of 65%.

Qut of the 64 responses, 48 departnents or 75% stated that there
is no waiting period.

Those departnents which responded that they had a waiting period
gave the following policies:

The department has a waiting period for those children over the
age of 16. No walting period if the child is under 16

Taere ig an immediate search for all children, however, the
information is not entered into the NCIC and COLLECT systeas
until 24 hours later or if foul play is suspected

Immediate response for all children under 10

The type of response depends on the discretion of the receiving
otficer

Impediate response unless information shows that the missing
children situation is temporary or habitual

Imnmediate response only if the complaint meets the NCIC
criteria for missing children

The general procedure for police departrents is to gather as much
information as possible, contact friends and neighbors and review
phone bills for any long distance calls. The local police are
notified to gearch in certain areas. The information is put on
the NCIC and COLLECT systems. The extent to which further action
is taken depends on the circumstances of the case, le. the age of
the child, whether he/she is handicapped.

The overwhelming majority of the responses, 88%, indicated that
there would not be any impact on the department with a mandated
immediate response policy. Only 8 departments expected
difticulties.

A substantial majority of the responses, 91%, indicated support
for a state missing persons unit. Ten departrents thought that
such & unit would be extremely beneficial. Only six responses
felt that there was little or no need for it.
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There were some interesting suggestions in the questionnaira.
Bxcerpts include:

An extensive awareness program should be initiated to prevent
child abductions. wilton P.D.

A newsletter or periodical from the clearinghouse, circulating
names, descriptions and photographs of missing children within the
New England area would be helpful. - Newtown P.D.

In addition to child abduction preventive education,
fingerprinting and photographs should be taken of the child.

Also, one should educate people to spot a runaway, what to do when
a child runs away and counseling. Ridgefield P.D.

The local police departments handle missing children complaints

very well. Their input in the state unit would be very valuabdle,
Plainfield Dept. of
Police Scrvices.

A standard fornm for missing children complaints should be adopted
and the information should be compiled on a computer which would
be assessible to all. Meriden P.D.

There should be a 50 state compact which would guarantee that when

an address of a missing child is given to that state's police,

they will act upon the request to invegtigate and hold the child.
Branford P.D.

Mandate an immediate response. Statford Springs P.D.
Groton P.D.

We strongly .upport the formation of the specialized state police.
U.S. Dept. of Justice,
Immigration and
Naturalization Service.

Policy as to what constitutes "missing persons® would be helpful
to many agencies, whose guidelines differ and whose investigative
priorities differ. Bethel P.D.

There is a need for a national missing persons report and booklets
to be senc nationwide. West Bartford P.D.

The use of the media can be very helpful.
Greenwich P.D.

A hot line can be used in cases of suspicious or unusual

disappearances. Information could be received and coordinated.
Milford P.D.

Post pictures of missing children on DOT buses.
Norwich P.D.
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File No. 936

Substitute House Bill No. 5131

House of Representatives, may 20, 1985. The
Committee on Appropriations reported through
Bepresentative Neumann of the 62nd District,
Chairman of the Committee on the part of the
House, that the substitute bill ought to pass.

AN ACT CONCERNING PSTABLISEMENT OP A NISSING
CHILDREN INPORMATION CLEARINGHOUSE.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of
Representatives in General Asseably convened:

Section 1. (NEW) (a) There is established a
missing children information clearinghouse within
the departeent of public safety. The
clearinghouse shall be supervised by the
comaissioner of the departsent of public safety,
wvho shall establish services deemed appropriate by
the departaent to aid in the location ef missing
children.

(b) a4s used in this section:

(1) "nissing child" means any person who is
under the age of eighteen years, vhose teaporary
Oor permanent residence is in Connecticat or is
believed to be in Comnecticut, whose location has
not been deterained, and who has been reported as
missing to a lav enforcement agency.

(2) "fissing child report®™ is a report
prepared on a fors designed by the department of
public safety for the use by private citizens and
lav enforcement agencies to report missing
children information to the aissing children
information clearinghouse.
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(c) The clearinghouse 1is establisked as a
central repository of inforsation regarding
aissing children. Such information shall be
collected and disseminated to assist in the
location of aissing children. The clearinghouse
shall:

{(n Bstablish a systea of intrastate
comaunization of inforsation relating to children
determined ¢to Lo missing by the parent, guardian
or legal custodian of the child, or by a law
enforcement agency;

(2) Provide a centralized file for the
excharge of information on missing children within
the state;

(3) Interface with the National Crime
Inforsation Center for the exchange ot information
on children suspected of interstate travel;

(4) Collect, process, maintain and
dissemirate information on missing children and
shall strive to wmaintain or disseminate only
dccurate and complete information;

(5) “‘onduct investigations concerning aissing
childrer in this state and cooperate with local
lav entorcement agencies and other state and
federal agencies in investigations concerning
missing children.

(d) All state, county and sunicipal law
enforceaent agencies shall submrit to the
clearinghouse all asissing child reports received
by any such agency.

(e} (V) Any parent, guardian or legal
custodian may submit a missing child report to the
clearinghouse onrn any child vhose whereabouts is
unknown, regardless of the circuastances,
subsequent to the reporting of such ¢to the
appropriate lav enforcement agency within the
county in which the child became missing, which
shall be included in the clearinghouse data base.

(2) The parent, gruardian or legal custodian
responsible for notifying the clearinghouse or a
lav enforcement agency of a aissing child shall
imnediately notify such agency or the
clearinqhouse of any child vhose location has heen
deterained.

8 Sec. 2. This act shall take effect July 1,
1985,

Comnittee Vote: Yea 41 Nay 0
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?ile No. 916 3
PISCAL INPACT STATENENT - BILL wWOMBER__SHB 5131

STATE IMPACT__ Coat, see helow

State

MUNICIPAL IMPACT__Minimal cost, see sxplanation heloy - Mandate

STATE AGENCY(S) Departaent af Puhlic Safety

Pull Operation
Current PY 198586 1986-~87 rY
T $100,000
1
1

State Cost
(savings)
St Revenue
(loss)
Net St Cost
(savings)
Municipal
Impact

1
t $100,000
H

EXPLANATION OF ESTIMATES:

STATE IMPACT: The passage of this bill would result in addi-
tional costs to the Department of Public Safety. Punds .n the
amount of $100,000 have been included within SHB 7451 (the
Appropriations Act, as passed by the Generel Assembly) for fis-~
cal year 1984-85 for a MiLsing Persons/Battered Spouses Unit.
This unit is somewhat different in function end operation from
the Clearinghouse described in this bill.

LOCAL IMPACT: The passade of this bill would result in eddi-
tional costs to various municipalities thet could be absorbed.
The bill would require all municipel law anforcement agencies
to submit all missing child reports to the Missing Children
Clearinghouse. Minimal costs would result from this reporting
requirement.
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Summary, A.G. 85-16, AA Streng*hening the Missing Children snd
Child Abuse Laws.

There has been a substantial increase in the number of missing
children complaints and child abuse cases. With the establishment
of the Missing Persons Unit, it is expected that even mcre

complaints will be filed with local and state police.

This legislation contains five initiatives designed to enhance
police efforts in this area and to increase the penalties for

people who harm our children.

Many missing children are abducted by the non-custodial parent.
Coanecticut makes it a crime of custodial interference for a
relative to take a child when he has nc legal right to do so.
Section 1 of this legislation further defines custodial
interference as the taking of a child for more than twelve hnurs
beyond the court approved visitation period. This amendment will
allow the police to take quick action if a child is not brought

back to the legal custodian.
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Section 1 of this legislation also adds a new section to Section
53a-98 of the general statutes, which allows the court to impose
court costs, attorney's fees and investigaticn costs on a person
convicted of custodial interference. The threat of a jail term
plus substantial monetary liability should deter the non-custodial

parent from abducting the child.

The police are often involved in missing children cases. They
face great difficulty in taking action be:ause it is often not
clear which parent has legal custody. Section 2 further defines
the role of the police officer in these cases. This section
should encourage police assistance in this area. Subsection c of
Section 2 of this bill states that a police officer {s not civilly
liable if he reasonably believes that the person holding the child
is not the child's lawful custodian. Reasonable belief includes a

review of a copy of 2 certified court decree.

Subsection a of section 2 allows a police officer to take custodv
of the child if he feels that the person hoiding the child wiil
violate state law and remove the child from the state. A person
may have legal custody of the child for a day but will take
edvantage of the time of lawful custodianship to take the chilad
permanently out of Connecticut. This section will allow a police
officer to detain the person and take the child f{nto protective

custody,
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Suhsection b of this section will reguire the police {n
Connecticut to return the child to the lawfnl custodian. There
has been some difficulty especially in interstate cases where the
abductor is extradited but there is no jnrisdiction over the
child. This section will make explicit that, in Connecticut, the

child is returned to the lawful custodian.

Section 3 requires that the court include on all orders for
custody, a note describing the crime of custodial interference and
the penalties for such a crime. By informing the parents of the
crime and penalties, the state may deter guch parents from

committing the crime.

Section 4 of this bill adds the costs cf psychological injury
inflicted upon a child because of a violation of a ch{ld atuse or
sexual abuse law or as a result of kidnapping as an injury that
the victimized child may bte compensated for by the state criminal
injuries compensation board. This initiative is based upon a

similar Kentucky law.

Section 5 prohibits probation as a sentencing alternative when a
person is found gquilty of a crime of child abuse, child zexual
abuse or kidnapping of a minor child. Deaying probation will
toughen the penalties of this law and increase the deterrent

effect of the statute.
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AG 85-16, An Act Strengthening the Missing Children and Child
Abuse Laws

Section 1, Section 53a-98 of the general statutes i{s repealed and
the following is substituted in l1jeu thereof:

(a) A person is guilty of custodial interference in the second
degree when: (1) Being a relative of a child who it less than
sixteen years old and intending to hold such child permanently or
for a protracted period and knowing that he has no legal right to
d0 so, he takes or entices such child from his lawful custodian;
(2) knowing that he has no legal right to d0 so, he takes or
entices such child from lawful custody any incompetent person or
any person entrusted by authority of law to the custody of another
person or institution [or] (3) knowing that he has no legal right
to do so he holds, keeps or otherwise refuses to return a child
who is less than sixteen years old to such child's lawful
custodian after a request by such custodian for the return of such
child; OR (4) ™AXES OR ENTICES ANY SUCH CRILD MORE THAN 12 HOURS
BEYOND THE COUR'T APPROVED VISITATION PERIOD FPROM A PARENT OR OTHER
PERSON HAVING LEGAL CUSTODY UNLESS A COURT HAS ENTERED AN ORDER
AUTHORIZING THE TAKING.

b} Custodial interference in the second degree is a class A
misdemeanor.

c) UPON A FINDING THA™ THE DEFENDAN™ HAS VIOLATED THYS SECTION OR
SECTION 53a-97, THE COURT MAY AWARD REASONABLE ATTORNEY'S FEES,
COSTS OF FINDING THE CHIWD, AND COURT COSTS TO THE CUSTODIAL
PARENT.

Section 2. (NEW) (a) A police officer investigating a report of a
violation of Part VII of the Connecticut Penal Code may take a
child into protective custody if the police officer reasonably
believes that any person unlawfully will flee the stzte with the
child.

(b} A child who has been taken or enticed by a person who has
been arrested for a violation of Part VII of the Connecticut Penal
Code shall be returned to zhe person, guardian or public agency
having lawful charge of the child, or to the court in which the
proceeding i{s pending, or to the probation department of the
juvenile court where the victim resides,
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(c) A police officer shall not be liable for taking physical
custody o>f a child whom he reasonably believes has been taken or
enticed in violation of Part VII of the Connecticut Penal Code and
for delivering the child to a person whom he reasonably believes
is the child's lawful custodian or to ary other suitable person.

(d) As used in subsection (c), a reasonable belief includes but
is not limited to a determination by the police officer, based on p
his review of the terms of a certified copy of the mcst recent
court decree granting custody of the child, that the parent
exercising control over the child is not the person authorized to
have custody under the terms of the decree.

(e} As used in this section, child means any person who is less
than sixteen vears old.

Section 3. Subsection a of section 46h-56 of the general statutes ‘
is repealed and the following is suhstituted in lien thereof:

(2) In any controversy hefore the superior court as to the
custody or care of minor children, and at any time after the
return day of zny complaint under cection 46b-45, the court may at
any time make or modify any proper order regarding the education N
and support of the children and of care, custody and visitation if
it has jurisdiction under the provisions of chapter 8150. Subject
to the provisions of section 46b-56a, the court may assign the
custody of any child to the parents jointly, to either parent or
to a third party, according to its best judgment upon the facts of
the case and subject to such conditions and limitations as it
deems equitable. The court may also make any order granting the
right of visitation of any child to a third party including but
not limited to grandparents. 1IN ANY ORDER MADE BY THE COURT
CONCERNING CUSTODY OF ANY SUCH CHILD, THE COURT SHALL INCLUDE THE
PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 532-97 AND 53a-98.

w Fade
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Section 4. Section 54-201 of the general statutes is repealed and
the following is substituted in lieu thereof:

AW

As used in this chapter:

(1} "Victim" means a person who is injured or killed as provided
in section 54-209;

(2) "personal injury" means actual bodily harm ard mental anguish
which is the direct result of bodily inujury and includes
pregnancy and any condition thereof OR ANY PSYCHOLOGICAL INJURY
SUFFERED BY A MINOR WHO IS THE VICTIM OF A VIOLATION OF PAR™S A\
VI AND VII OF THE CONNECTICUT PENAL CODE;

o 9
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(3) ‘"Dependents” means such relatives of a deceased victim as
were wholly or partially dependent upon his income at the time of
his death and shall include the child of such victim born after .
his death; 3
(4) °“Relative of any person® means the spouse, parent, A
grandparent, stepparent, child, including natural born, step and
adopted, grandchild, brother, sister, half brother, hslf sister or
spouse's parents.
Section 5., Subsection a of section 53a-29 of the genaral statutes K
is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof: -1

(a) The court may sentence a person to a period of probation upon N
conviction of any crime, other than a class A felony OR A FELONY v
VIOLATION OF PART V OP THE CONNECTICUT PENAL CODE WHERE A MINOR IS .
A VICTIM OF SUCH VIOLATION OR A VIOLATION OF PART VI OR PART VII g
OF THE CONNECTICUT PENAL CODE WHER2Z A MINOR IS THE VICTIM OP SUCH
VIOLATION OR A VIOLATION OP SECTION 53a-196, if it is of the
opinion that:

N
R

L

(1) Present or extended institutional confinement of the
deZendant is not necessary for the protection of the public;

(2) the defendant is in need of guidance, training or
asgistance which, in his case, can be effectively
adminiscered through probation supervision; and

(3) such disposition {s not i{n consistent with the ends of
justice.
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Senator Hawkins. I would like to state foi the record that of the
73 children who were murdered last year in the State of Florida, 23
of them were murdered by a parent. Those are grim statistics, but I
can recall so well 4 years ago, when we were having testimony that
the enforcement officieis thought runaways were bad kids, period.
Unfortunately, it has ‘uken us 4 long years, and I do not know if
we have made a lot of progress yet,

Parental abduction sounds like one loving parent fighting with
another loving parent. That is not the case; that has never been
the case. Even after the latest showing of the chi’dren’s pictures
after “Adam,” we still had some resistance when children were lo-
cated, saying that that is just a parents® fight. It is a criminal ab-
duction for the parent without custody to take the child from the
parent with custody. That is clearly a crime. Somehow, we use the
epharism “parental abduction”. It is kidnapping; it is a crime; it is

unishable and prosecutable, and we should pursue it with those
eep intentions. The Federal Government is moving much faster
than I have seen them move on anything else when it comes to
awareness, sensitivity, matching money, et cetera. We have put a
desf responsibility on the Center. .
ou stated, Mr. Attorney General, that we have to educate the
police and educate court officers and educate schools, educate the
children, and that we are wait::ﬁ for the materials to come from
the National Center. Then we will distribute from this committee,
probably through the education system information to parents and
their children. However, when it comes to sensitizing and educat-
ing the police, the Justice Department must take the lead role. We
have a long way to go, because cur police are overworked and un-
derpaid. I take off my hat to anyone who wants to e a policeman,
anybody who stays in the police force, at the risk of their lives and
(tiheir families’ lives, in order to help other families and their chil-
ren.

Everyone I know is interested in children, and their safety. It is
a mothernood issue. However, in the event that a tragedy occurs
and a child is missing, the ﬁerson on the front line is the policeman
or the policewoman, and the parent is the person who is grieving.
And that is what we are here for today, to see where we have been.
We kr.ow where we should go, to get information from the experts
to provide this abundant information that has to be disseminated
in a short amount of time to the local level, school districts, school
principals. Fortunately, we are in the right committee here and
will work with the Justice Department.

Jay, tell me—and I will agk this of all three witnesses—are we
scaring children?

Mr. HoweLL. I think we have got to be careful. In traveling
around the country, I see a real concern in families and children,
and in those letters, if there is any common thread in the over 100
letters that we have gotten from different children in the United
States, it may be that, that they are concerned. But I think the
answer to that is the proper kind of instruction. We do not want to
mislead the world into believing that the real risk or the biggest
risk is some unknown person that is going to take them from a
street corner. That ignores what we know about crimes against
children. The whole word, “stranger,” is something that we are

33

'-i}s: At

TR

e el

wirc By D BT gy AL e b

L. 22
D i

3
B T
g
o

.




90

trying to get out of our vocabularly, and we make specific mention
of it in the education and prevention materials that we are going
to release tomorrow. This will be our first brochure on this issue.

I think the answer is, if you look at the statistics and the sur-
veys, by the low estimates, 60 percent—I heard one this weekend of
70_percent; 30 percent by the high estimates—of crimes against
children are committed by people who have some faniiliarity with
the child. So we need to lower that anxiety level by giving out ac-
curate, honest, but very calm information about what to loo!: out
for, not even as much as who to look out for, because that is hard
for a child to understand.

The other message that we are trying to change in education and
prevention is to draw a reasonable liue, and that is not to tell the
children all the ible horrible events that may hagpen to them
if they do not obey the instructions and the kind of information
that is distributed to them in an effective fashion, but to tell them
simply that some people, unfortunately, will harm children; to give
them the kind of clearcut instructions that say, as the Attorney
General just said, no one should be touching them in certain areas
Adults should not be asking children for assistance. Kids ask kids
for assistance. No one should be suggesting that you give them di-
rections, look for their lost puppz;ngo certain places, go with their
parent in an emergency. Those kinds of things are very common.
But the kids do not have a handle on it, because they think it is
somebody who looks unusual, in a disheveled raincoat, like they
live under the bridge or something, and that that is what they are
looking out for.

Iz reality, I think the greatest horror of crimes against children
is who commits them. There is an old saying in this business—ev-
erybody hates a child molester until they meet one.

And I used to watch that transformation in the courtroom every
day, because we would all say in the abstract, “Gee, this is a nasty
business; we hate people who do nasty things to children sexually.”
But when they walk into a courtroom, not all of them, but most of
them, are well-dressed, articulate, soft-spcken, and they have 19
churchgoing buddies who say—and I have heard this 100 times—
“Your Honor, I know he pled guilty, but I do not believe he could
have done it, so please be lenient with him.” And that is the prob-

2am. Those people are good with children. That is why they are

doing that. They love kids in a way that this society does not
accept, and should not accept, and will never accept. But you have
got to understand the nature of that soft approach to children.

We do know of cases where children are literally hustled into a
van and kidnapped in a forcible fashion, but much more is the inci-
dence of the soft approach. And I think if we are going to address
child victimization, iet us get rid of the fear and start getting down
to reelity and to calm, reascnable instructions that families can
really grab ahold of. And this kind of stuff—if we had every attor-
ney general distributing this kind of critical information in the
United States, it would be great. I mean, it is where we ought to
go. It is good information, and it is the answer, I think. There are
answers to all of this. That is what is amuzing, that there are an-
swers.
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Senator HAWKINS. I am also hearing about ineffective and fraud-
ulent campaigns by entrepreneurs to help missing childven. How
bad a problem is this becoming?

Mr. HoweLL. Unfortunately, on the heels of the good awareness
came the exploiters, and I do not know what Mr. Lieberman’s expe-
rience is in Connecticut, but we have seen several nationwide pro-
Gr:ﬂms. attorna%m(,‘.ge?:ara(li usltave Clark in Arkansasmt:l has filed t;lvo
civil gui i udulent or misrepresentative programs. We
have referrrsg to the U.S. Postal authorities a case of exploitation of
the use of our 800 number for their consideration and t.'lowup.
The calls we are getting around the country indicate that perhaps
the most vulnerable areas are direct mail and teleplione solicita-
tions—a great unknown. Hundreds of thousands of dollars are
being raised by people who know nothing about crimes agmnst
children. And I do not know where the money is going, but it
hurts. As you know—you know what the demand is out there
among the good organizations, those rooctlsnfeo le—what John
and Reve mentioned about the Adam Walsh Child urce Center
and the other good groups who need help, and that takes money
right out of their pockets.

Senator HAWKINS. Mr. Attorney General, you are chairman of
that task force, are you not?

Mr. LieserMAN. Yes, Senator. I am the chairman of the Commit-
tee on Charitable Solicitation and Fraud for the National Associa-
tion of Attorneys General. This area is ripe for charitable solicita-
tion and fraud use we have a %rowmg level of awareness and a
real sympathetic public reaction. Unfortunately, there will be con

rtists and predators who will come in and try to take advantage of
those emotions, and they will do it through telephone solicitation
and direct mail.

We caution people in Connecticut that any time they are solicit-
ed by someone they do not know, over the phone or through the
mail, ask for more information; don’t give the money until you are
convinced that this is a worthy organization, because as Jay has
just said, every dollar that goes to a fraudulent solicitation is one
less dollar that wiil go to legitimate organizations that are trying
so hard to help people in this area.

Senator HawkiNs. Would you support in addition to more man-
power at the Center—the attorney generals of the 50 States estab-
lishing a clearinghouse? You are telling everybody to be aware, but
how do remain informed.

Mr. LieserMaAN. I would say that the best thing to do is to call
the attorney general of your State or the department of consumer
protection in your State. Most States have laws that require those
who are legitimately soliciting for a charitable ti)urpose to obtain a
license from the State. I presume—and I would leave it to Jay to
say—that they might also call the National Center just to check on
a charity. And we try to work together. If we hear that there is an
economic predator out there, we are very sensitive to put out advi-
sory bulletins within our own State.

If I may, Senator, there is another area that I would not call
fraud, but in which new products are being offered to deal with the
missing children problem. You can apparently buy a microchip to
place in the back of your child’s moutﬁ, with information about the
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child; even an electronic alarm system that will et off in f'our
house if a child goes beyond a certain point from that house. I am
not here to say that those are useless. I am here to say that they
are very expensive, and that they have pitfalls attached to all of -
them. They are not failsafe, by any means. It seems to me that ‘
rather than buy expensive uigxrnent for your kid:. what you
really should do is equip your children with the aducr- 1, with the
reality that Jay has just talked about, to beware, .. .::e precau-
tions, to act in a way that will avoid ever being a vict... of a child
abductor. .
Senator HAWKINS. Mayor, do you have a comment? i
Mayor Owens. Yes, Senator Hawkins
You were talking about groups that were cropping up throughout .
the country that really should not be involved in the missing chil-
dren problem and are really inclined to capitalize on an emotional :
issue 1n this Nation.
The Board has discussed this, and we do want the Center to
become involved sn that there is some type of a process where the
Center can say, “Vrell, this is an organization that the Center has |
approved,” and we would hope that the cause would be directed to :
the Center when an organization is formulated in a community to :
see i8 this one that the Center has approved or not.
Quite frankly, that is how I became involved with missing chil-
dren in my own locel community. I no sooner was elected mayor of
the city and I had somnebody practically living outside my door on a
daily basis, or made three or four or more phone calls to my office,
to the point that I became a little bit concerned. They were being a
little bit too aggressive. They were starting an organization where :
they were going to do ﬁnge;'ﬁrinting, and they were going to devel- =
op a coloring book, and do all these nice things. I called Jay at the ¢
National Center, and I asked him what he thought about it. He
said, “Well, I have some concerns. I think they are doing some
good things, but it is for profit as opgosed to nonprofit.”
I also contacted the local police department. And my initial in-
tuition was really accurate, because as the group began to expand,
what they did is they started going outside the city, outside the
State, and they were soliciting money in some of the southern -
States, saying that the mayor of the city and the sheriff of the com- -
munity had endorsed them, when in fact, we had not. And it was
only with the local media of the southern States callmg to ask, “Is
this fact?”’ When they found out that it was not fact, the organiza-
tion dissolved. And we as a board are very concerned that we do
not capitalize for profit on an emotional issue in thig Nation, and I
think it is an issue that we really have to deal with as we go
through this process.
Senator HAwkins. I have had similar experiences. Regretfully, I
cannot even write a letter anymore in response to someone sending .
me some of these programs. I used to just acknowledge I had re-
ceived them, by sending a thank you for sending us note. I have
been etated when reading in the forward of bulletins that serve as
solicitations saying that their program is endorsed by Senator
Hawkins.
It is quite sad that you have to refuse to verify the receipt of ma-
terial, in efforts to ensure that it will not be used to extort money
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from people, in order to put in solicitors pockets. I think we should
establish a program in the Center to determine how much of this
money is going for children’s programs and how much is going to
pay the salaries of these people that have suddenly become so in-
terested in children. In many charitable organizations too much
overhead makes the organization not worthy or contribution. If
they really have no product that is worthy of the expense, I think
the center should not approve other organization. We should begin
giving the National Center’s seal of approval to worthmrganiza—
tions and even then you will run a risk because some y some-
place will be disappointed in its service. It is treading on new terri-
tory, but I think it has to be addressed. We appreciate the profes-
sionalism and the high degree of commitment that we see ex-
pressed here a continuing interest.

I view from afar the pricking of people’s conscience, that yes, we
should think about this, for a while, not for a long sustained) period
of time, just that it is happening and I want to be interested, but I
do not want to get too deeply involved; I have other things to do. It
takes deep commitment and a steady commitment on a day-to-day
basis. And I know of no people who have been more totally dedicat-
ed than Jay Howell anme National Advisory Board and the at-
torneys general of the United States, and also the States that have
passed the legislation, and thank you for your continued commit-
ment, I look forward to working with you.

The next hearing we will have will be on the exploited part of
the Center. Today we are talking about missing children, and we
would like to talk about why we changed the title of the Center,
and what we are looking for by broadening the responsibilities of
that Center. And hopefully, we will make progress in that field at
the same time.

We will dismiss this panel at this time and thank you for your
contribution.

As our next panel, we welcome two representatives from a field
of thousands of potential representatives; I am impressed with the
number of private partners that have joined this fighi.

These representatives are Mobil Oil's Joe Hinton, and Steve
Johnson from Texize Corp., whom Senator Thurmond spoke about.
The White House has been a great partner in the development of a
broader responsibility on the part of the citizens, and especially the
Private Sector Initiatives Office of the White House.

You can see from the displays we have before us that businesses
and organizations are getting invoived in the search for missing
children and making our searches successful. The number is rapid-
ly growing as companies institute bold new programs. Tomorrow,
as a matter of fact, World Airways will announce Operation Home-
ward Bound. It is a program through which World Airways will
provide free airfare to reunite families with their criminally ab-
ducted children.

This program addresses a problem we have had from the begin-
ning. I can remember Jay Howell and I working for days, trying to
get transportation money together for a parent to plane a criminal-
l& abducted child home, and we were refused by national airlines.

e eventually got a bus ticket for this perent who obviously had to
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get there in a hurry. World Airways is becomizng one of our new
partners and we thank you.

The businesses that you represent, both Texize and Mobil OQil,
have been pioneers again with us in helping find these children.

Do you have a statement, Joe or Steve?

Joe, we would be happy to hear from you.

STATEMENT OF JOE B. HINTON, VICE PRESIDENT, U.S. MARKET-
ING, MOBIL OIL CORP.; AND STEVE JOHNSON, SENIOR PROD-
UCT MANAGER, TEX!ZE CORP

Mr. HiNTON. Thank you, Madam Chairman and members of the
subcommittee. I welcome this opportunity today to talk to you
about corporate involvement in the search for missing children.

According to the National Center for Missing and Exploited Chil-
dren, upwards of a million and a half children disappear from their
homes and neighborhocds each year. Most are thought to be run-
aways, throwaways, or victims of noncustodial parental kidnap-
pings, and are often subject to exploitation or abuse.

For many others, there is no explanation of their disappearance,
and some must be presumed to be victims of exploitation and
abuse}.lsUp to 50,000 children a year a.e still mi sing after 12
months.

Nothing is more agonizing than the sudden disappearance of a
child, or a brother or a sister, and so the problem of missing chil-
dren affects the quality of all our lives at the most basic level.

To solve a problem that is national in scope, and at the same
time intensely personal, is a unique challenge. This is where busi-
ness comes in.

Businesses like Mobil operate in every community in the Nation.
In the course of our business, we are in regular touch with the
public. We are well practiced in the art of getting our message
across to individuals and to diverse groups. In short, we are ideally
positioned to raise an individual’s and indeed a community’s con-
sciousness on the issue of missing children, to advance the search
for specific children, and to help alert the greater public to preven-
tive measures.

Mobil, as you know, is posting pictures of missing children in our
Washington area service stations, and with the Acacia Group, is
sponsoring programming about these youngsters on WTTG-TV,
Channel 5 here in the Washington, DC area. We have also used
our corporate op-ed column to focus attention on this problem. We
Fave been pleased to learn that as a result of our plea in our op-ed
column, a number of companies have decided to get involved either
through contributions or campaigns in their localities.

I would like to renew our call this morning, that still more busi-
nesses become involved.

I have heard some people ask why Mobil decided to focus its at-
tention on the problem of missing children. I would like to answer
this question in this very simple way. All companies, like Mobil,
are made up of people—shareholders, employees, customers, and
suppliers—and we have a stake in anything that can make life
better or worse for all these people involved in our enterprise. I
cannot think of a single subject that is more central to who we are
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as a people than how we take care of our children. After all, we are
parents and grandparents, too Ensuring our children’s psychologi-
cal as well as their physical safety is at the heart of our values as
individuals, as members of private enterprise and as citizens in a
free society.

Congress, the President, and many States have moved to put
public resources behind this effort. The media has focused atten-
tion on it. And business and industry have begun their efforts to
help. In business, we like to speak of opportunities rather than
problems. The problem of missing children has been well defined,
and it is imposing. We at Mobil are pleased to be one of the first
bgfsinesses to be making a contribution to this very worthwhile
effort.

Thank you for having me here today, Senator.

Senator HAWKINS. I would like to say, Mr. Hinton, that after you-

published your challenge to American businesses, my phone start-
ed ringing with people saying, “We are going to accept Mobil’s
challenge. What do you want us to do?”” And I would put them in
touch with you or with the National Center. It has been very grati-
fying for me to see the warm response.

How do stockholders respond to this?

Mr. HiNToN. This has been one of the most positive programs we
have implemented, I think, in our company since I have been with
Mobil, some 28 years. The response has been overwhelming and
very positive.

Senator HAWKINS. I have spoken with your employees; they are
quite excited about it, and know that it has a good tone of family,
that the Mobil family is now interested in the traditional American
fsillmily. And I must say it is contagious, and I ccmmend you for
that.

Mr. HintoN. Thank you.

Senator HAWKINS. Mr. Johnson, would you tel! .s about Texize’s
financial involvement with missing children. Ii is a great example
for American husinesses, but we also like to hear about your feel-
ing about your investment.

Mr. JounsoN. We are proud to be a partner with the National
Center for Missing and Exploited Children, and also with the
Crime Prevention Council, two organizations that we have been
working with for about 6 months, in developing an operation called
Operation Kidsafe, which is a Texize effort to address a concern
that obviously affects us all. There are many concerns that are
easily dismissed because we see them as far away, or that they do
not affect us individually. But as Joe has said, we are all parents,
or we are all grandparents, we are all aunts or uncles. Kids are an
important part of our lives; they touch all of us.

There has been an increasing consciousness in the country rela-
tive to child safety. And, as we became involved, as we saw the
missing kids’ pictures that had been sponsored by many organiza-
tions around the country, we began to get involved with the Na-
tional Center and the Crime Prevention Council and discovered
that there was a real need in terms of prevention.

The pictures are excellent. They arc extremely worthwhile. They
ha.2 raised our awareness of the problem. They have brought us to
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the realization of the fact that this is happening, that we cannot
dismiss this.

But we discovered that there was also a real need in terms of
prevention; communication between parent and child about this
issue; preplanning—what to do in the event of a regular situation
that happens day-to-day, a situation such as whether you are sepa-
rated from your parent while shopping, or an out-of-the-ordinary
situat},ign, the many stories that we have heard over the past
months.

We have developed a program, Operation Kidsafe, that is direct-
ed at the prevention side. We believe that that is where this prob-
lem is really going to be solved. And in working with the center,
we discovered that the need was for a nonthreatening environ-
ment, a nonthreatening tool, that the parent and child can sit
down together and talk about child safety; what to do in case these
situations arise.

S~ our program is preventive in nature. The first part of Oper-
ation Kidsafe, the logo which here, features McGruff, which is the
Crime Prevention Council “spokesdog,” if you will something that
many kids around the country are aware of because of the Crime
Prevention Council’s programs in the school systems.

We have, as a part of our commitment to this program, as a kick-
off to Ooperation Kidsafe, initiated the program with a donation of
$100,000 to the National Center for Missing and Exploited Chil-
dren, which was delivered to Jay Howell and Leon West. We are
very proud of our association with the National Center.

When T first heard about the National Center, the first thing
that came to my mind was that it was probably a collection of un-
caring government bureaucrats who are not really concerned about
this issue. But I have got to tell you that was totally dismissed. I
remember the first afternoon that we were there—and this gives
you an indication of the kind of people that are involved—we were
taking a tour through the center and saw the hotline in operation.
An extremely retarded 15-year-old child called in. The child was
not missing. He simply wanted someone to talk to and had found
the number. It would have been very easy for the people in the Na-
tional Center to immediately say, “This person has nothing that is
of information to us,” and could have hung up. But what impressed
us was that they took the time to talk to this person and to make
this person feel important—to really care.

I think this is the kind of organization that has been created,
and this is the kind of organization we are proud to initiate Oper-
ation Kidsafe with.

The $100,000 is just the beginning toward reaching our goal of a
hal{ million dollars toward child safety. The second part of Oper-
ation Kidsafe is directed to the consumer and to our trade partners
that we want t» involve in this program.

Consumers will have an opportunity August 25, 48 million house-
holds around the country will have an opporti:nity to get this book
free from Texize. It is the Safety Phonebook for Kids that we have
developed with the Crime Prevention Council and the National
Center. It is designed to be a nonthreatening device, that the
parent and the child can sit down together and discuss safety
18sues—how to get in touch with emergency people in their commu-
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nity; how to get in touch with their parents at work; important in-
formation that the parents need an easy reference at home, in
terms of communication with their child; also, things dealing with
special medications of the child, special needs of the handicapped
child. These booklets will be available this summer, right at back-
to-school. We think that is a perfect time to be talking about this
issue.

The top half of the book remains in the home. It is designed to be
a permanent reference so that these emergency safety tips, the
message from McGruff, the emergency phone numbers, can always
be there in case they ere needed. The bottom half goes with the
child, so that the child can get in touch with the operation. There
is a slot for a quarter provided that the child can use to get in
touch. This is a part.

In addition, we want to form a partnership with peog(l)e who use
our products. We are a consumer products company. in a pro-
gram this summer, on coupons that would be dropped anyway, we
are saying to consumers that “We want to involve you in this pro-
gram, so that for every coupon you redeem on our products, we will
contribute 20 cents to the National Center.” That will mean an-
other $100,000, so thot is $200,000. And the final $300,000 of our
goal will come from our partnership with our trade customers, and
saying that, “For every case that you buy, we will contribute 20
cents to either the Crime Prevention Council or to the National

nter in your name.”

This is forming a partnership, an awareness level, and we think
it is very worthwhile,

Senator HAWKINS. I am very impressed, and I hope other busi-
nesses join you. That is phenomenal.

Senator Dodd.

Senator Dobp. Just to welcome both of you here. I mentioned
earlier what ADVO had done and what you people are doing. I
think what we do is important, obviously, at the Federal level, and
what we do at the State level. But I really believe in the final anal-
gsis that the greatest impact will come from the private sector and

usiness. You just reach so many more people than we reach—it is
nice to have these cameras right here, but this will be a news
show, maybe 20 seconds tonight, maybe 1 minute, maybe 2 or 3.
You never know what it will end up—and I am not saying that in
a critical way. They have a lot to cover and a short time to report
it in. But when that soft drink, that piece of mail, that person pull-
ing into a gasoline station or whatever else it may be, you are just
going to reach far more people than we do, and without you, really,
we would have a limited audience. We would have those who have
been either directly affected by this, those who are deeply interest-
ed in it for whatever reason. But the dpeople that we want to reach
are the people who have children and are not thinking about this,
necessarily, peoPle who have children, but do not realize what a
staggering problem it is and how they can contribute and help.
And that is what you help us reach, and without it, really, we
would be a relatively small group of people, talking to each other.

So I commend you for what you are doing. As I said earlier, I
think it really does heighten what I have seen all across the coun-
try in the last few years, and that is, there is a renewed sense of
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corporate responsibility in this country, which I think is extremely
refreshing. It is manifested in a lot of different ways. It is Warren
Anderson, going to BOPOL; it is Mobil being involved in this pro-
gram; it is Texize, and ADVO—those are things which I think are
doing a tremendous amount to make this country strong, and I
thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

Senator HAWKINS. Tomorrow, I am having a breakfast honoring
some of the private partners that we have in this National Part-
nership for Children’s Safety, and just briefly, reading from the
list—we could have had maybe five pages—and I was gratified by
the number of people calling and asking, “Can we come to the
breakfast?”’ It wae a sellout, we will do it annually, but tomorrow,
we will honor: ABARTA; the Acacia group; the ACTION Agency;
Advanced Transformer Co.; American Highway Carriers; American
Business Network; the ASN Television; Bekins Van Lines; Burger
King; Centers for Excellence; the College of American Pathologists;
Commitron Corp., which helped print this “Selected State Legisla-
tion,” which is one of our vital keys in getting this nationwide, one
of the silent heroes; E.M. Cornell Trucking; C&S Wholesale Gro-
cers; Dynamark Security Centers; Dynamic Solar Systems; Duro
Paper Bags; Eckerd Drugs; F.R.S. Industries; the Federal Bureau of _
Investigation, who we welcome; Fundraiser Products; Good Morn-
ing Awmerica; Greyhound; Gnardian Photo; Carol Holt; IBM; James-
way; JERCO Paper Corp.; Jim Walters Papers; K-Mart Corp.; Law-
son’s; Louisiana Power & Light Co.; Marfred Irdustries; MARTA;
Metromedia; Mobil Oil; National Broadcasting Corp.; Naticnal
Council of Juvenile and Family Court Judges, a key player; the Na-
tional Education Association; the National Sheriffs’ Association;
New Jersey Transit; North Yonkers Preservation and Development
Corp.; Nicki’s Dining and Cocktail; Noble, Inc.; Pepsi Cola; Perry;
Playhouse Video; Printing Industry of Metropolitan Washington;
Randall Stores; Roundy’s, Inc.; Springfield Sugar and Products Co.;
Sun Carriers; Sun Coast Group; Supermarket Communications;
Texize; Thurston Motors; Trailways; Trinity Paper and Plastic;
TRUXAL; Turner Broadcasting Systems; the U.S. Army Office of
the Provost Marshal; Winston Network; F.W. Woolworth Co,;
World Airways, and Worlds of Wonder—and the list is growing.

[Additional material supplied for the record follows:]
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STATEMENT OF
THE AMERICAN GAS ASSOCIATION
BEFORE THE
CHILDREN, FAMILY, DRUGS, AND ALCOHOLISM SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE
LABOR AND HUMAN !_5OURCES COMMITTEE
UNITED STATES SENATE
ON
EFFORTS TO LOCATE MISSING CHILDREN
May 23, 1985

The American Gas Association (A.G.A.) is a national
trade association comprising nearly 300 natural gas
distribution and transmission companies in all 50 states.
A.G.A. member companies currently provide almost 853% of the
nation's natural gas utility sales. A.G.A. appreciates the
opportunity to comment on the gas industry's contribution to
nationwide efforts to prevent child abductions by strangers

and to locate missing children.

National child Watch Campaign

In April of this year, A.G.A., in partnership with the
National Center for Missing and Exploited children and the
National Child Safety Council, organized a nationwide
program aimed at reducing the incidence of abducted child:
in this country. fThis program, the National Child watch
Campaign, is intended to aid education and prevention
programs that help to prevent future abductions and to
locate missing children and return them to their families.
Since the National Child watch Campaign was begun, the
Edison Electric Institute (EEI) and other industry groups

and individual companies have joined in these efforts.
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By combining the resources of these various groups,
educational materials and pictures of missing children will
reach an estimated 50 million homes in all 50 states and the
District of Columbia.

The National Child Watch Campaign is modeled on the
"Neighborhood Watch" concept. As the name implies, the
campaign alerts the public to watch out for missing
children. It should help reduce abductions by educating the
public about ways to protect children and by reminding
potential abductors that "we are watching!"

Originally, the National Child Safety Council
approached A.G.A. with the idea for the National Child Watch
Campaign. Gas utilities, because they have regular access
to millions of people, were seen by the National Child
Safety Council as unique and ideal conduits for
disseminating information nationwide. Through its access to
the public, the gas industry will promote the two-prong goal
of the National Child Watch Campaign: to help locate
missing children abducted by strangers and to help reduce
the number of abductions threough increased public awareness,

public education, and deterrence of potential abductors.

Industry Efforts in the Child Watch Campaign

Nationwide efforts to locate missing children require
coordinated activities by the National Child Safety Council,
the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children,

A.G.A., and all of the companies and organizations
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participating in the program.

The National Child Safety Council is a non-profit,
charitable organization. It is the oldest national child
safety organization in the country and was the first to
address the issue of missing and abducted children.

The National Center for Missing and Exploited Children
is a national clearinghouse for information on the estimated
1.5 million children reported missing each year.

A.G.A.'s role in the National Child Watch Campaign is
to coordinate national efforts and distribute to
participating companies information and materials needed to
implement local programs. The National child Safety Council
provides educational information and other assistance
directly to participating companies. The National Center
for Missing and Exploited Children, in cooperation with the
Justice Department, provides two photographs of rissing
children every month to A.G.A. Accompanying these
photographs is vital information that will aid the public in
identifying these abducted children. The association
provides participating companies with these photos and
information, in addition to acting as a clearinghouse for
local Child Watch programs developed by individual
companies.

The participating companies play a vital role in making
the National Child wWatch Campaign an effective one. They
are responsible for disseminating educational and abduction

prevention materials to the public. They are also
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responsible for putting the photographs and biographical

information in the hands of the public via mailing inserts,

counter cards, posters displayed in public places, or other
means developed by the individual companies. The
photographs always appear with t“e National Center for
Missing and Exploited Children's toll-free hotline telephone
number. This facilicates reporting of any tips on abducted
children. Such tips are forwarded immediately by the
National Center to tlie appropriate law enforcement agencies.
Public response to local. Child Watch programs and the
National Child Watch Campaign has been ovarwhelmingly
positive. For example, Gary D. Lemmons, columnist for the

Calhoun News-Dispatch in Georgia, commented on Atlanta Gas

Light's program in an April 3 column. He noted that he had
been particularly critical of the gas company's bill insert
newsletter in a previous column. However, upon seeing AGL's
bill insert that displayed the photos of missing children,
Mr. Lemmons, referring to his criticism of the inserts,
exclaimed "I TAKE IT ALL BACK!" He went on to say that bill

inserts such as the one showing the children's photos

provide a worthwhile service that is valuable to the people
of his State.

Also, Columbia Gas Distribution Companies have come up
with an innovztive plan, combining the Child Watch campaign
with an extensive educational prevention program. Called
"Guard Against Strangers" (GAS), the program focuses on

informirg Columbia customers and their children, as well as

O
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educators, about child safety. 1In additon to mailing
ingerts, Columbia has develped a GAS kit, distributed to
gschools, which encourages children to seek emergency help
from Columbia service employees. The company has al3o
developed a pamphlet for parents about child safety. The
pamphlet is being offered in quantity to schools, law
enforcement officials, libraries, churches and other

organizations having regular contact with children.

The Need For a Nationwide Campaign

Local-level campaigns for missing children are helpful,
but children who are abducted by strangers are frequently
taken away from their home communities. In lact, John B.
Rabun Jr., Deputy Director for the National Center for
Missing and Exploited Children, has pointed out that
children who are abducted by strangers are almost never
located in their own communities. Because siyhtings of
missing children will normally not occur in a child's home
locale, Mr. Rabun has pointed out that it is imperative that
careful attention be given to the ability to receive
information nationally and channel all of that information
to the law enforcement agency having jurisdiction.

The unique position of utility companies provides an
ideal conduit for the exchange of information that is
necess.ry ifor 2n effective national Child Watch program.

The regular contact that utility companies have with many

millions of customers provides an ideal forum for placing
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the National Child Watch Campaign squarely in the

consciousness of the public. This forum allows the National
Child Watch Campaign to provide educational and prevention
materials nationwide so that the tragedy of missing and
abducted children can be reduced in the long-term by
prevention and deterrence.

Although many children are reported to the National
Center for Missing and Exploited Children as “"missing" every
year, the National Child Watch Campaign targets its efforts
on a category of children that stands to be helped most by a
national campaign. Generally, missing children fall into
the follwing groups: (1) those who are runaways; (2) those
who are abducted by a custodial parent from their
other parent:; and (3) those who are avducted by strangers.
The National Child watch Campaign focuses on the last of
these categories. Children who are abducted by strangers
form a relatively small group (compared to the other two
categories). This group of children will benefit from
preventive protection and deterrence of potential abductors.
Also, law enforcement efforts with respect to this group are
made very cdifficult due to the fact that these children are
often moved hundreds of miles from their home communities.
Sightings of missing children that otherwise would not be
reported are far more likely to be reported as a result of
the nationwide scope of the National Child watch Campaign.
As a result of reported sightings, law enforcement

activities can be directed at fruitful avenues of
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investigation.

Duration of A.G.A.'s Involvement

A.G.A. intends to coordinate the National Child Watch
¢ =aign on a continuing basis. The phenomenon of missing
children, despite the best efforts of every organization
involved in the Natiomal cChild watch Campaign, is likely to
continue for the foreseeable future. Given this prospect,
A.G.A. believes it can provide a public service of
immeasurable value by coordinating the Child Watch campaign

indefinitely.
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Mr. Chairman:

The National Education Association appreciates this opportunity to
share its views on the important issue of missing and exploited
children. For more than one hundred years, the NEA has been an active
voice in promoting equal educational opportunity; calling for
professional excellence among educators; and providing leadership in the
child advocacy arena. Since the early 1900's when NEA moved to the fore
of efforts to have Congress enact child labor laws, the security and
well-being of the nation's children have been important objectives of
the organization.

Today, the more than 1.7 million NEA members are appalled by the
increase in crimes against children. Our collective membership of
elem'~tary, secondary, and higher education employees supported the
efforts of Congress to enact legislation to assist state and local
governments -- those best qualified to lead grassroots efforts -- in

putting a halt to crimes against our children. NEA believes Congress

must build on its remedial legislative efforts of recent years by

assisting the states in programs to prevent the abduction and exploita-

tion_of cur children. The heart of this nation cannot beat secure as

long as one child remains missing.

Missing and Exploited Children: A National Tragedy

Each year hundreds of thousands of children disappear from fam-
ilies, neighborhoods, and schools across this country. 0f the 38,700

missing persons in Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) files as of

April 1, about 28,244 were children. Law enforcement personnel are

ofter, immobilized by too few leads; lack of access to state-of-the-art
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technology to track missing persons; and state and local laws that
prevent law officers from effectively responding to the crime. While
there are few sources of hard data, available statistics indicate that
the nation's children are indeed at risk.
8§ At least 1.5 million children are reported missing
trom their homes each year.
@ About one million of these children are “voluntarily
missing" -- a label ysed to describe both those who
run away by choice or run away from intolerable
conditions such as abuse or neglect. These children
are often the victims of street crime, exploitation,
or homicide.
[ ] Twenty-five thousand to 500,000 children are the
victims of non-custodial parental kidnapping.
0  Betweer 4,000 and 20,000 children are victims
of criminal abduction and foul play. Many small
children are stolen by individuals either to raise as
their own or to be sold for "gray market" adoption or
exploitation. These children are often the victims of
accidental deaths.
[} Eighty-five percent of the children who have been
criminally or sexually exploited were missing from
their homes at the time of they were exploited.
0  One in four female children and one in ten male
children will be molested or raped by the time they

reach adulthood.
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As is a,varent from the broad range 1n abduction figures, there is a
need for improved data collection and compilation in the area of inci-
dence and prevalence of child abduction, parental abduction, and crimi-
nal abduction. Additional data are also needed on the correlation
between missing children and sexual exploitation, and research into the
psycholcgical consequences of abduction and sexual exploitation is badly
needed.

Children who are abducted become ensnared in a web of fear, pain,

uncertainty, and loneliness from which they may never escape. We must

pledge ourselves to stem the tide of missing and abducted children

immediately. For them we must pledge ourselves to protect the quality

of all children's lives by renewing our commitment and jnvolvement in

securing safety, protection, and well-being. The Y.S. Congress laid the

foundation for this effort three years ago when it enacted the Missing

Children's Act.

Missing Children's Act: A Solid Foundation on Which to Bui'd

In 1982 Congress passed the Missing Children's Act (P.L. 97-292)
which extended the FBI's authority to collect and record data about
missing children. The law required the FBI to 1ist missing children in
the National Crime Information Center which is accessible to most police
departments across the country. The law also established a National
Center for Missing and Exploited Children to stimulate a nationwide
effort to control the growing epidemic of missing and exploited chil-
dren. The Center provides direct assistance (through its training,
technical assistance, and an 800 toll-free number) in handling cases of

sexual exploitation, child pornography, and child prostitution. The
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Center opened its doors in vune 1984. As of March 1985 it had received
some 21,892 calls. The Center has assisted in solving 870 of these
cases.

Enactment of the NEA supported Missing Children's Act brought
national attention to the growing crisis of missing children across this

country. An outgrowth of the impact of the new law was a realization

s -

that the magnitude of the problem required an even greater national

PR

commitment.

Missing Children's Assistance Act: Broader Focus

In response to the need to expand the focus of the Missing Chil- .
dren's Act, Congress passed the Missing Children's Assistance Act {P.L.
98-473). This action came during the final days of the 98th Congress.
NEA supported enactment of the Missing Children's Assistance Act which
authorizes the Administrator of the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention to:

L establish a toll-free telephone number where people

may report information on the location of missing
children;

L establish a national resource center to provide
technical assistance to state and loca! governments,
public and private non-profit agencies, and persons
involved with locating and recovering missing
children;

] conduct national studies on missing children cases:

¢ fund research, demonstration, or service programs

designed to educate parents, children, and community

i
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agencies in ways to prevent the abduction of children;

assist in the tracking and recovery of missing chil-

dren; instruct pavents in ways to facilitate identi~

fication of their children; and collect data from

selected states and localities on the investigative

practices used by law envorcement agencies. é

Missing Children's Assistance Act: Requlatory Recommendations ¥

The Administration recently released proposed regulations to
implement the Missing Children's Assistance Act. NEA has reviewed the .
proposed regulations and believes they should be modified in the follow-
ing areas:

] Amend the proposed regulations to implement the Missing i

Children's Assistance Act to include classroom teachers on Advisory

Boards.
Public school teachers probably have more contact with missing and

abducted children than any other adult group. Educators, therefore, are

an_important link in the identification and recovery process involving

missing children. Their special knowledge and skills should be utilized
by including their participation on Missing Children Advisory Boards
throughout the country.

¢ Amend the proposed regulations to include the FBI Police

Academy as a training site for law enforcement personnel.

Proposed regulations implementing the Missing Children's Assistance
Act suggests utilization of the Federal Law Enforcement Training Center
at Glynco to reach large numbers of law enforcement officers with
training in missing children cases. NEA believes this training should

be made available to law enforcement officers at the local level as
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well. To facilitate this effort, the Federal Bureau of Investigation

Police Academy should be utilized. The FBI Police Academy invites law

enforcement personnel with federal, state, and local level jurisdictions

to participate in programs utilizing state-of-the-art technology and

information. It 1is important that participants take their newly
acquired knowledge back to their state and local agencies because it is
primarily at that level of government where recovery of missing children
occurs and abduction prevention should be taught.

Missing Children's Assistance Act: Llegislative Recommendations

NEA believes enactment of the Missing Children's Assistance Act
will have a positive and far-reaching impact in eradicating the current
crisis of missing and abducted children. We also believe, however, that
the law would be even more effective if it were amended in several
areas:

L] Include the public schools in coordinating abduction preven-

tion programs and the dissemination of information on missing children.

The public schools should be utilized in disseminating information

on missing and abducted children. Information on missing and abducted

childven should be submitted to the schools on a regular and systematic
basis. Lists of missing children should be prepared and distributed to
all instructional personnel so that they may compare the lists to their
students to identify victims. Missing children, especially those
abducted by a non-custodial parent, often turn up 1n out-of-state school
districts. Teachers, therefore, are a good source to make initial
jdentifications of missing childrer.

Efforts to develop and implement abduction prevention programs

should also be coordinated with the schools. Because the schools
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represent a familiar setting, they are an ideal environment for children

“e

to be taught about abduction and exploitation. In this setting,
children can be taught safety procedures to prevent their own abduction.

The public schools could also be utilized as centers for parents to

e The .

bring their children to be fingerprinted.

#  Enact the Professional Developrent Resource Center Act (P9RC),

{H.R. 1352) introduced by Rep. Ford (D-MI), which could provide child

abuse and abduction training for educators. .

Professional Development Resource Centers are designed to provide
educators an opportunity to improve the quality of their classroom
instruction and enhance their ability to meet the changing needs of

their students. These changing needs unfortunately often finclude the

Fha

trauma of abduction, sexual expioitation, or othe abuses incurred by ¢
missing children. Classroom teachers must be trained in these areas to
teach their students how to prevent abduction and effectively and
sensitively handle students who have experienced abduction. NEA sup-
ports enactment of PORC legislation (H.R. 1352) which would establish
Professional Development Resource Centers in school districts across the
country. This legislation 1s currently pending in th. Ho'se Education
and Labor Committee.

[} Eliminate the 24-hour waiting pe.jod before initiating and

investigating a mssing child report.

r In cases 1nvolving missing children, the minimum 24-hour waiting
period before an investigation may be begun can be destructive to

efforts to recover the child. The first 24 hours are often the most

important in efforts to recover the child. The Missing Children's

ERIC
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Assistance Act should be amended to require irmediate commencement of a

search whenever a child is discovered missing or abducted.

Conclusion
Mr. Chairman, the NEA's commitment to halting the epidemic of
missing and exploited children is well established. Our membership has
adopted extensive policy calling for (1) NEA affiifate participation in
national clearinghouse programs for information v, wissing children; (2)
cooperative working relationships between NE+ affiliates and state and
local authorities to raise public consciousness about the missing-
children crisis; and (3) the dissemination of pictures and information
about missing children to school employees. We have pledged to utilize
all our resources in these efforts. Since the beginiing of the year NEA
has --
[ ] participated with the Nationa1 Center and The
Learning Channel to produce a hal/-hour cable
television program on missing children;
® given the Center $25,000 ($10,000 for Center pro-
grams and $15,000 for joint NEA-Center fforts);
[ included the missing children issue in conference
agendas; and
[ published missing children's photographs ard bio-
graphical sketches in NEA publications (two 1
recent posters prepared by our organization are

attached by way of exampie).
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While our own efforts on this jssue keep us busy, we are aware of the
cormmendable efforts of others who are equally committed to the location
and return of missing children. On May 20 more than SO U.S. Senators
sent letters to the major television broadcasting networks urging them
to air pictures of missing children as part of their regular program-

ming, and to help publicize the National Center Ffor Missing and Ex-

ploited Children hotline and information services. NEA supports the

oy e

Senators' efforts and believes they have jdentified an important and

powerful medium for informing the public of the missing children crisis.

Mr. Chairman, NEA believes the time is ripe to escalate our efforts
to protect the most vulnerable members of society -- our children. He !

must couple our efforts to inform the public about child victimization

with effective methods of empowering them with abduction prevention

skills and the ability to identify and help the potential runaway.

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

ERIC

116

—
W@ Quality Inns International
10750 Cotumiwa Prke Siver Spnng Mandand 20901 Phone (3011 236 5032

Quality Ians Intermational
10750 Colurbia Pike

Silver Spring, MD 20901
Contact:  Lynn O'Rourke Hayes

May 23, 1985

STATEENT
FOBERT C. HAZARD
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUI'IVE OFFICER
QUALITY INNS INTERNATIONAL

Good momng, Madave Chaurman and rembers of the
Subcamittee. 1 @ppreciate the opportunity to subrat
testiony to such an rportant and emoticnal hearing.

Today's topic 1s a preblem that 3s of concem to
everyonc: Missing Children. Thousands of children cach year
disappear from thear hames. I believe the only chance we
have of stopping the tragedy of abducted, expleosted, ard cven
mardered children 1s for individual volunteers, private
bus'ness, and govermrent to work together to establish

proc @S to help locate these yQung people.
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Early last ronth, Pres:dent Peagan called wen the
private sector to come forward and to help find a solutiom
for this very scrious problen. 3¢ a father of fave, T anm
particularly encauraged by the steps we at Quality Inns wall
be able to take to assist in this worthwhile effort.

This problem hit home for us at Qualaty sceveral ronths
Ago when the brain-injured daughter of onc of oir arployees
wis abducted. Michele was mussing for 3 wocks before
President Ragan's office called the problem to the altentioe
of the press. Her photo was flashed on television screens in
the area and wathin 5 hours Michele was posatavelv dentafied
by sanoone wo had seen her with her abudctor. They called
the TV stataon and she was returned hare safely to her
rother, Connic Tippett.

Rhowing that recovery is possible makes us ¢ven more
eager to work with the Natienal Center for Missing and
Boloited Chaldren. The stalf at the Nacional Center has
boen extremely helpful to us as we studied the jssue and put
our program together. In cooperaticn waith the Mational
Center, Qualaty Inmtemstional has instituted the following
four-step program:

1. We provide a "safe harbor® for missing or runaway
children by miking available direct cormunications with the
National Center's tramned profess.onals here in Washington,
D.C. By using the special phone 1n the lobby of any of the
700 Qualaty Imns, Carfort Imns, or Quality Royales in the

L8 w Ganade, a caller wall ymciately be connected to th,
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Rational Center's hotlane here an Washington throuch our
mteraational reservations fenter. We believe it may be
easier for a child in a stressful situation to remorber to go
to a Qualaty Im than to romerber Or try to find an 800
nber.

2. Wwe post the photographs and biographics of two
m1ssing children in the lcbbies of every Comfort Inn, Quality
Im, or Qulity Royale in the U.S., Canada, Mexico and the
United Kingdome  The photographs are provided to us cach
ronth by the Rational Center and are posted with the wratten
perrassian of cach child’s parent. Anyone who might
recognize the child or have any pertinent anformation will
also have access to our lobby phone to contact the National
Center's professionals. Noarly 26 million trawvelers stay
with the Qulaty System cvery year and will have the
opportunity to identify one of these children.

3. Quality Imns International has one of cur industry's
most sophisticated worldwide reservations center. Our
telecamunications experts have happily volunteered to share
thear knowledge and expertise wath the National Center as
they work to rprove and expad their own teleocammicatins
cquirent and 800 service.

. And fainally, we will work to distribute educationsl
raterls through each of our mns, We will provide safety
LIPS Lo our quests traveling with children and rmake the
rational Center®s informition available to the carun ties in

which our s are located. We are currently working with
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children's grougs, including the Girl Scauts and Boy Scouts
of Arerica, to educate children about our program.

We are very pleascd to provide any Support we can to the
Natiocnal Qenter for Missing and Bxploited Chaldren. If we
can help even cne child to reach hame safely, the entire

program will have been wortimhale.

Thank you.
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With that, we conclude this hearing and look forward to the next
one.

Thank you all for your participation in the solution to this prob-
lem of missing children.

[Whereupon, at 12:30 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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